10/11/2018

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
9	
10	EVENING COMMUNITY MEETING
11	
12	THURSDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2018 6:30 PM
13	
14	HUNT STREET STATION
15	
16	2200 HUNT STREET
17	
18	DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48207
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



1	BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS:
2	
3	GREGORY HICKS, Secretary to the Board
4	WILLIE BELL, Chairperson (District 4)
5	DARRYL D. BROWN, Vice-Chairperson (District 1)
6	ELIZABETH BROOKS, Commissioner At Large
7	EVA GARZA DEWAELSCHE, Commissioner At Large
8	JIM HOLLY, Commissioner At Large
9	SHIRLEY A. BURCH, Commissioner (District 3)
10	WILLIE E. BURTON, Commissioner (District 5)
11	LISA CARTER, Commissioner (District 6)
12	WILLIAM M. DAVIS, Commissioner (District 7)
13	
14	
15	APPEARING FOR THE OFFICE OF CHIEF OF POLICE:
16	
17	DEPUTY CHIEF ELVIN BARREN
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



- 1 Detroit, Michigan
- 2 Thursday, OCTOBER 11, 2018
- 3 At approx. 6:29 PM.
- 4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Good evening. I am
- 5 Police Commissioner Willie Bell, I represent
- 6 District 4, I serve as Chair of the Board ane
- 7 will be conducting our meeting today.
- 8 On behalf of the Board for those n
- 9 attendance, thank you for joining us. For people
- 10 hearing this meeting on your government cable
- 11 channel, thank you for viewing our meeting.
- 12 I want to welcome back Police
- 13 Commissioner Elizabeth Brooks. Commissioner
- 14 Brooks' husband William Charles Brooks, better
- known as Bill, made his transition on October 1,
- 16 2018. While many of us were away at the NACO
- 17 Conference at this difficult time our hearts and
- 18 prayers remained here in Detroit with
- 19 Commissioner Brooks and her family.
- 20 Om behalf of the Board we salute our
- long-standing ground-breaking work of William
- Brooks better known as Bill Brooks, as a military
- man, a corporate leader, community model and a
- 24 standard bearer and a father and a grandfather
- and just really an outstanding young man who made



- 1 significant contribution not to just Detroit, but
- 2 to the nation in terms of his service, and we
- 3 just really want to really keep the Brooks family
- 4 in our prayers.
- 5 And we just want to welcome her back,
- 6 this is her family, her extended family, and I
- 7 know it's been a difficult time, but we'll
- 8 continue to pray for her and her family.
- 9 Tonight we are meeting at the historic
- 10 Hunt Street police station. Some of you might
- 11 have had some personal experience or encounter
- 12 and I'm one of those. But tonight's meeting is
- 13 the 10th community meeting for the Board in this
- 14 calendar year.
- The Hunt Street police station opened
- its doors in May of 1897 and I was not around,
- 17 and served as the 3rd Precinct for the Detroit
- 18 Metropolitan Police Department for 63 years.
- 19 The station was designed by Edward Van
- 20 Leyn, but he also designed the Belle Isle Casino
- 21 and both locations remind us of the architectural
- 22 beauty within our city.
- The station was closed in the police
- 24 department in January, 1960 when the Hunt and
- 25 Chene precincts were merged into the Mack and



- 1 Gratiot precinct better known as the 7th
- 2 Precinct.
- 3 Since then the station has been
- 4 entrusted to a variety of private owners and on
- 5 February 29, 1980 it was added to the National
- 6 Registry of Historic Places. In early 2017
- 7 Detroit's Matthew and Kevin Morren (sp) purchased
- 8 the building -- we're going to hear more about
- 9 them shortly -- began a historic renovation to
- 10 return the Hunt Street Station to its former
- 11 glory. You can see the results in the work.
- 12 I would like Commissioner Willie
- 13 Burden, District 5, to welcome us to his
- 14 district. Commissioner Burton, would you like to
- 15 address the audience at this time?
- 16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sure. Thank you,
- 17 Mr. Chairman. Welcome everyone to the mighty 5th
- 18 District and anything that we can do as
- 19 commissioners to continue to serve the community
- 20 we are definitely available and so welcome.
- 21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 22 Commissioner Burden, District 5. And at this
- 23 time we would like to hear from -- or okay.
- MR. MORREN: Well, I do want to welcome
- 25 all of you to the Hunt Street Station, it's



- 1 pretty cool. I'm Matthew Morren, I'm one of the
- 2 co-founders of Hunt Street Station -- sort of
- 3 refounders I quess.
- 4 As the Commissioner said, the building
- 5 opened in 1897, so we're just trying to continue
- 6 that stewardship. My brother and I purchased
- 7 this just a little over a year ago along with my
- 8 wife who's too shy of the microphone to get up
- 9 and speak.
- 10 And then Alex is our community manager.
- 11 But I want to -- I think this is such a cool
- 12 thing when Theresa and her team approached us --
- 13 I think -- is it Sgt. Belligen -- he's not in
- 14 here right now, but he came by and walked into
- 15 the lobby and was so excited just to see this
- 16 space he immediately calling back to the
- department hey, how can we do this, how can we
- 18 put this together, and we welcome all of you, we
- 19 welcome you with open arms.
- 20 I think that we're excited for Hunt
- 21 Street Station to become a strong part of the
- 22 community again. We think we're already doing
- 23 that, but hosting this sort of thing is just
- 24 another opportunity to do that.
- 25 So welcome, Commissioners. Our



- 1 hospitality, anything we can do to make this
- 2 night go well, we offer that and for anyone in
- 3 the community, this is a space, we -- so just to
- 4 -- we operate this is a co-working space now. On
- 5 the second floor is a company that my brother and
- 6 I founded 20 years ago that does educational
- 7 technology consulting.
- 8 So we run our offices out of the here,
- 9 but on the third floor and the first floor is a
- 10 co-working space, so we wow have meeting rooms,
- if people need an office or need a desk space to
- 12 work from, that's available. So we're open
- 13 to the community, we're here for that and that's
- 14 kind of why we thought the name was so
- 15 appropriate.
- This is obviously a police station, but
- 17 now it's just another type of community building
- 18 and we want to carry that on, so thank you again,
- 19 everyone, for coming and welcome again to the
- 20 Hunt Street Station and you don't have to stay in
- 21 the back. The cells were back there.
- (APPLAUSE).
- 23 COMMISSIONER BELL: I really commend
- 24 the 7th Precinct leadership team to make this
- 25 type of decision and for us to really have this



- 1 opportunity and for Mr. Hicks to give us some
- 2 background and a history. I'm been driving by
- 3 this location for many many years as a young
- 4 person and as a teenager and adult. Gratiot
- 5 Avenue has been a major artery for me, so I
- 6 started my career at Mack and Gratiot 7th
- 7 Precinct and -- but the history of this -- you
- 8 know, this is the home precinct of Ben Turpin,
- 9 the home precinct of Ben Turpin. There are
- 10 pictures of a lot of history there and I'm going
- 11 to reach out to some of the individuals who might
- 12 know a little bit more personal history like
- 13 Moses Baldwin who is in his 80s now and come on
- in the late '50s, not in that early '50s, but
- 15 this is a history-making opportunity here, so I
- 16 hope that you appreciate it.
- 17 And so if we move forward n our agenda,
- 18 I'm going to ask the chaplain from the 7th
- 19 Precinct Doug -- he's been a long-time chaplain
- 20 with the DPD Chaplain Corps and I have interacted
- 21 with him over the years and we appreciate you
- 22 coming forward for the invocation.
- 23 (INVOCATION WAS GIVEN).
- 24 COMMISSIONER BELL: At this time I'm
- 25 going to ask the Commissioners to introduce



- 1 themselves starting to my far right with a west
- 2 sider.
- 3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Commissioner
- 4 William Davis, District 7, west side.
- 5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Good evening,
- 6 Commissioners, Shirley Burch, 3rd District.
- 7 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Good evening,
- 8 Elizabeth Brooks, appointed, so I'm all sides.
- 9 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Good evening,
- 10 Commissioner Brown, District 1 on D West Side.
- 11 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Good evening,
- 12 Lisa Carter, District 6, Southwest Side.
- 13 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Good evening,
- 14 Eva Garza Dewaelsche, born and raised on the
- 15 southwest side, but appointed.
- 16 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Jim Holley, at
- 17 large.
- 18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Commissioner
- 19 Willie Burton, District 5, your commissioner, the
- 20 youngest elected here on the Detroit Board of
- 21 Police Commissioners.
- 22 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Oh, why you got
- 23 to go through all that?
- 24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. I'm going to
- 25 ask our Board Secretary Gregory Hicks, Mr. Hicks,



- 1 would you introduce the Board, please.
- 2 SECRETARY HICKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
- 3 I should note for the record you do have a quorum
- 4 present and I'd also indicate that before
- 5 introduction of our staff I do want to point out
- 6 that Sgt. Quinn is taping the meeting tonight,
- 7 Media Services is providing the audio-visual work
- 8 for tonight and Dale Rose is the court reporter
- 9 of this evening.
- 10 And immediately to my right is
- 11 Mr. Robert Brown and if we go to -- our attention
- 12 would be to the first and second row, the second
- 13 row first, Ms. Johnson who is the fiscal and then
- in the front row closest to me is Ms. Blossom who
- 15 is our Media Outreach and then I just told that
- 16 Mr. Warick is the attorney for the Board and then
- 17 we'll go to Dr. Polly McAllister who not only
- 18 introduces herself but introduces other members
- 19 of the Office of the Chief Investigator.
- 20 CHIEF INV. McALLISTER: Good evening.
- 21 I'm Polly McAllister, Chief Investigator and
- 22 attending tonight's meeting with me is
- 23 Supervising Investigator Akbar, Investigator
- 24 Stanton, Investigator Colter, and in his own
- 25 district is Supervising Investigator Cornwell.



- 1 SECRETARY HICKS: The configuration of
- 2 the room a little bit different from what we
- 3 normally get and typically we do have our staff
- 4 on the front row, so when they're out of position
- 5 I might miss someone and I'm clearly did not want
- 6 to miss Melony White who is the executive manager
- 7 for our Policy Section.
- 8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 9 Mr. Hicks and thank the staff and OCI for their
- 10 attendance. And next item would be to -- oh,
- 11 okay, I'm looking to my far left, our Deputy
- 12 Chief sitting in Chief Craig, Barren, would you
- introduce yourself and introduce any other DPD
- 14 personnel.
- 15 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Yes, I'm Deputy
- 16 Chief Elvin Barren, I oversee the operations of
- 17 the Neighborhood Police East and Metropolitan
- 18 Division which consists of our tactical units.
- 19 Starting in the back with Comm. Mahone,
- 20 could you introduce yourself?
- 21 (DPD PERSONNEL INTRODUCES THEMSELVES.)
- 22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir,
- 23 thank you for your attendance and representing
- 24 the Chief. Commissioners, the Chair would
- 25 entertain a motion to approve the agenda for this



Page 12

- 1 evening's meeting.
- 2 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.
- 3 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Support.
- 4 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly
- 5 moved and supported. Those in favor?
- 6 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?
- 8 Motion carries. The next item of business would
- 9 be the approval of the September 27, 2018
- 10 minutes.
- 11 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.
- 12 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Support.
- COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly
- 14 moved and supported. Discussion? Those in favor
- 15 aye?
- 16 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?
- 18 Motion carries. Just to back up a little bit,
- 19 I'm so excited about being here.
- 20 Do we have any elected officials or
- 21 representatives of elected officials here this
- 22 evening? Do we have any community leaders in any
- 23 capacity, would you stand and introduce yourself,
- 24 any community leaders?
- 25 MR. STOKES: Calvin Stokes, president



- 1 of Citywide.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 3 Mr. Stokes, Citywide.
- 4 MR. BROWN: I'm Calvin Brown,
- 5 Children's Center.
- 6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for your
- 7 attendance. Any others.
- 8 MS. JACKSON: Kimberly Jackson from
- 9 the 11th Precinct.
- 10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Ah, Ms. Jackson,
- 11 good to see you.
- 12 MR. WILLIAMS: Meko Williams, Chief
- 13 director at Hydrick Drake.
- 14 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, good to
- 15 see you and good see all of you this evening. So
- 16 as we move forward I guess the next time would be
- 17 my report.
- 18 On behalf of the Board I want to
- 19 express our concern and support for fallen and
- 20 injured officers. Our concern for offer safety
- 21 and citizen protection continues. Our board
- 22 receivers a weekly report form the department
- 23 listing injured officers. I would ask that the
- 24 Deputy Chief report out during his remarks to
- 25 advise us of any additional information related



- 1 to injured or fallen officers.
- 2 The Board of Police Commissioners meets
- 3 every week and most of you know at 3:30 public
- 4 safety meeting. On the second Thursday of the
- 5 month we meet like this in the community at 6:30
- 6 PM throughout the city at various precincts.
- 7 Under the Detroit City Charter, Article
- 8 7, Chapter 8, the Board of Police Commissioners
- 9 is empowered to provide civilian oversight and
- 10 supervised control of the police department. Our
- 11 citizens are justified when asking how does
- 12 civilian oversight of law enforcement help you as
- 13 a citizen within our community.
- 14 Our answer is we protect the civil
- 15 rights of citizens. Oversight organizations like
- 16 the BOPC are at the forefront for investigating,
- 17 reviewing and auditing individual cases of
- 18 citizen complaints, and patterns of operations by
- 19 a police agency to eliminate misconduct,
- 20 discriminatory police practices, unnecessary use
- 21 of force by police. Mutual trust and respect
- 22 between the police and community is critical
- 23 toward increasing the quality of life for
- 24 residents and visitors to Detroit.
- The Board of Police Commissioners



- 1 exists to provide civilian oversight for the work
- 2 of the Detroit Police Department. As a board we
- 3 receive and investigate non-criminal citizen
- 4 complaints, monitor the operation of the
- 5 department and work with the Mayor and Chief of
- 6 Police to make or modify police policy.
- 7 Before outlining the order of the
- 8 meeting I want to share a few items with the
- 9 Board. A few weeks ago the Board approved a
- 10 towing program recommended by the Mayor and the
- 11 Chief of Police. The program has several items
- 12 that would impact operation of the Board.
- One item was to change the Board's role
- 14 by bringing routine hardship cases to the Board.
- 15 In response to this concern I directed the staff
- 16 to provide the department with the following
- 17 statement which I will read in part.
- 18 The Board would like to maintain a
- 19 position of oversight to the department and
- 20 therefore would engage in a discussion and
- 21 drafting for the department a set of guidelines
- 22 for the hardship provision to the new towing
- 23 configuration, but will not accept a role as
- 24 described by AC James White to half routine
- 25 hardship cases heard by the Board.



- 1 Also, given that this new towing
- 2 program is very different from the past towing
- 3 program I'm requesting that within 30 days from
- 4 today the department report back to the Board on
- 5 implementation and progress of the new towing
- 6 program.
- 7 Also transmitted to the department was
- 8 a list of reports that I believe would not
- 9 overburden the department, but will keep the
- 10 Board informed on the operation of both the new
- 11 towing program and utilization of the old towing
- 12 rotation.
- I would like to remind the department
- 14 that several weeks ago Commissioner Lisa Carter
- 15 requested a copy of the existing towing rotation
- and to my knowledge we're still waiting on this
- 17 information.
- I want to remind the public that copies
- 19 of several proposed directives that would be used
- 20 to amend the police manual is posted at our
- 21 website. We are hoping that you review and
- 22 comment on the recommended changes on the
- 23 department. Comments can be submitted at
- 24 www.detroit.gov/bopc.
- Today we have several resolutions and



- 1 certificates. The first resolution honors the
- 2 life and service of former police officers Stevan
- 3 Miller. Officer Miller served in the police
- 4 department for 28 years and then joined the Wayne
- 5 County office and served an additional 18 years.
- 6 I didn't know he did a long history with Wayne
- 7 County Sheriff's Department. Deputy Sheriff
- 8 Stevan Miller passed away on October 5, 2018.
- 9 The second resolution is for Ms.
- 10 Constance Bailey who is from the 7th Police
- 11 Precinct. Is Ms. Bailey here? Not yet.
- Ms. Bailey has served as a Community
- 13 Relations Council president for the past two
- 14 years.
- We also have a certificate of
- 16 appreciation that will be handled by Commissioner
- 17 Willie Burton for Demeeko Williams and Katherine
- 18 Richardson.
- 19 Tonight we have two re-scheduled
- 20 presentations. The first presentation will
- 21 outside some of the work of the 7th Precinct,
- 22 Comm. Charles Mahone and Capt. Carol Hope will
- 23 address the Board representing the Police
- 24 Precinct No. 7. We also allocated a 15-minute
- 25 block of time for the precinct report.



- 1 The second presentation is an update
- 2 on medical marijuana. Presentation will be
- 3 provided by Assistant Corporation Counsel Kim
- 4 James representing Corporation Counsel Lawrence
- 5 Garzia. We allocated a 20-minute block of time
- 6 for the medical marijuana report.
- 7 Toward the end of the meeting we had
- 8 oral communications. Please make sure you print
- 9 your name on a speaker card. Cards are located
- 10 in the back on the table and if not Mr. Brown
- 11 will hold up a card, you can get a card now.
- He will need your card before the
- 13 beginning of the public comments. We will hold
- 14 each speaker to the two minutes and we would hope
- 15 that you would be respectful of the process
- 16 because we respect you to give you that
- 17 opportunity and we hear to hear from you.
- Now I'm going to ask Commissioner
- 19 Burton to -- we have resolution for Ms. Bailey
- 20 first, right? Well, Ms. Bailey is not here yet,
- 21 right? We can do the certificate, Commissioner
- 22 Burton will.
- COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, we
- 24 have one certificate of recognition person that's
- 25 here and I think the other one is running a



- 1 little behind schedule, so I'd like to call up
- 2 Demeeko Williams to come up forward, please.
- 3 Demeeko Williams, many of you all see
- 4 him out in the community helping families with
- 5 their water shutoffs and a strong advocate.
- 6 We may see him at the National Action
- 7 Network meetings and any other surrounding
- 8 community meetings, but today we want to
- 9 acknowledge him for the work that he does in the
- 10 District 5.
- 11 You know, Demeeko Williams, he's no
- 12 stranger to our community, no stranger to helping
- 13 families that are in need. You know, Detroit is
- 14 still one of the blackest and poorest cities in
- 15 America and many Detroiters' water are being shut
- 16 off daily. And when you see this and you hear
- 17 this in a city like Detroit, you know, somebody
- 18 got to do something and stand up, and that's what
- 19 Demeeko Williams is all about.
- 20 So this is a certificate of
- 21 appreciation from the Board of Police
- 22 Commissioners, certificate of recognition to
- 23 Demeeko Williams, Chief director of Hydrate
- 24 Detroit on behalf of our constituents. The Board
- 25 of Police Commissioners awards a certificate of



- 1 recognition for Demeeko Williams. Please accept
- 2 our sincere appreciation for helping Detroiters
- 3 to maintain access to clean and affordable water.
- 4 Thank you for exemplary services your company is
- 5 providing here in the city of Detroit.
- 6 Let's give Demeeko Williams a round of
- 7 applause, everybody.
- 8 (APPLAUSE.)
- 9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Appreciate the
- 10 hard work you're doing and congratulations. I
- 11 know you was out here working hard today. Would
- 12 you like to see a few words?
- MR. WILLIAMS: Sure. First of all, I
- 14 just want to thank you so much for giving me this
- 15 award and the police commissioners.
- I'm very honored and very privileged to
- 17 serve the city. When I first got into this in
- 18 2014 we started as the Detroit Water Brigade. We
- 19 started as a community neighborhood network group
- 20 that provided emergency water, rapid relief,
- 21 consultation advocacy and delivery of water and
- 22 also restoration to Detroiters who were in need.
- There were over 20,000 citizens that
- 24 was without water and they had not been
- 25 consulted, they don't have the money. We have a



- 1 problem of affordability.
- 2 Today is the day of imagine a day
- 3 without water and if you could imagine one day of
- 4 you being without water it would totally
- 5 inconvenience you because water is a human right.
- 6 Water is an essential human right. It's life.
- 7 And we cannot deny life to anyone is in need.
- 8 So as you think about being without
- 9 water and the stress that it causes, you think
- 10 about the families who have children and who have
- 11 people that they care for that don't have access
- 12 to water.
- So when they called me after they've
- 14 been rejected by the Detroit Water and Sewage
- 15 Department, after they've been told they have to
- 16 have this type of money and they call me and I
- 17 hear this situation and said what can we do to
- 18 help, and they're like, "Oh, my God, someone is
- 19 finally here" and just to make sure that they
- 20 have access to turn the water back on is a joy
- 21 and a pleasure that I take and I share that story
- 22 of their triumph and success with all of you.
- 23 We all have one resource to share and
- 24 we all share this resource, so don't let them
- 25 take it away, don't let them privatize it. Do



- 1 not let them corporatize the water and sell it
- 2 back at a higher price.
- 3 Let us all keep this in a public common
- 4 and let us do whatever we can collectively to
- 5 fight for our water. It's not your fault, but
- 6 this is now your fight because if they take away
- 7 our water and if it happens around the country
- 8 and other developing countries we are going to be
- 9 in a situation, and we have to make sure that we
- 10 retain that access to water.
- 11 Thank use so much.
- 12 (APPLAUSE.)
- 13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 14 Commissioner Burton and Mr. Williams. The next
- 15 point of business would be a resolution and our
- 16 Vice-Chair Darryl Brown who has affiliation with
- 17 the Wayne County Sheriff's Department is going to
- 18 address this.
- 19 COMMISSIONER BROWN: It's a board
- 20 resolution honoring Sqt. Stevan Curtis Miller
- 21 Posthumously.
- 22 Stevan C. Miller was appointed to the
- 23 Detroit Police Department on October 24, 1997
- 24 upon graduating from the Metropolitan Police
- 25 Academy. Officer Miller began his career at the



- 1 11th Precinct and
- 2 WHEREAS, Officer Miller dutifully
- 3 served the 14th Precinct, Special Crimes Unit,
- 4 Headquarters Bureau Staff and Headquarters
- 5 Surveillance Unit, in 1994 while working in the
- 6 Headquarters Bureau Officer Miller was
- 7 temporarily assigned to the Violent Crimes Task
- 8 Force working with the FBI to take down notorious
- 9 burglary gangs. Officer Miller was promoted to
- 10 the rank of sergeant on August 23, 1999 and
- 11 reassigned to the Headquarters Surveillance Unit.
- 12 He also served at the Police Athletic League and
- 13 Narcotics Conspiracy Section until his service
- 14 retirement on February 18, 2005.
- 15 After retiring from the Detroit Police
- 16 Department he continued to work in law
- 17 enforcement by joining his former boss Sheriff
- 18 Benny Napoleon in the Wayne County Sheriff's
- 19 office as head of security. He was later
- 20 promoted to the position of Department Executive
- 21 and
- 22 WHEREAS, Sgt. Miller tirelessly served
- 23 the Detroit Police Department and citizens of
- 24 Detroit for 28 years and the citizens of Wayne
- 25 County neighboring communities for 13 years his



- 1 professionalism, commitment to public service,
- 2 integrity and dedication were a credit to the
- 3 Detroit Police Department and Wayne County
- 4 Sheriff's Department.
- 5 He was a community activist and he was
- 6 highly respected by the citizens for whom he
- 7 served as a consummate professional.
- NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the
- 9 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners speaking
- 10 for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit
- 11 Police Department awards this resolution
- 12 posthumously in recognition of Sgt. Stevan
- 13 Miller's many decades of dedicated diligent
- 14 public service.
- 15 His professionalism, integrity and
- 16 standard of commitment to the City of Detroit and
- 17 its citizens merit our highest regard.
- 18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 19 Commissioner Brown. The Chair will entertain a
- 20 motion.
- 21 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.
- 22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Support.
- 23 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly
- 24 moved and supported. Discussion? Those in favor
- 25 aye?



- 1 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Motion carries.
- 3 Keep the Miller family in your prayers. He would
- 4 be funeralized Saturday morning Greater Grace at
- 5 11 o'clock, so we definitely want to pray for the
- 6 family and his commitment and service over the
- 7 years.
- 8 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Let me mention
- 9 just one more thing about Sqt. Miller, just
- 10 worked closely with him and knowing him, he was
- 11 also a member of the Peacekeepers which is a
- 12 motorcycle unit that a lot of police officers
- 13 join. I myself am a member and we work closely
- in the community because both of the
- organizations are 501(c)(3) organizations
- 16 continuing to do community service work and he
- 17 was very active in that group.
- 18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. I
- 19 assume the other two persons haven't arrived yet.
- 20 Ms. Bailer, you have a rep for her? Oh, that's
- 21 outstanding. Commissioner Burton, would you step
- 22 forward for the resolution.
- 23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: The last time I
- 24 seen you we were at the 7th Precinct community
- 25 relations meeting, so welcome back to District 5



- 1 and I have a resolution I'd like to present a
- 2 resolution for your mom, but you're here to
- 3 accept it in her absence. Okay, cool.
- 4 So we have a resolution here honoring
- 5 Ms. Constance Bailey.
- 6 WHEREAS Ms. Constance Bailey has been a
- 7 resident of the city of Detroit for more than 40
- 8 years. She graduated from Mumford High School,
- 9 earned an associate's degree in accounting from
- 10 Wayne State -- I mean from Wayne County Community
- 11 College.
- 12 She also attended schools where she
- 13 received travel certification and
- 14 WHEREAS Ms. Bailey has been an active
- 15 member of the 7th Precinct community serving as
- 16 Community Relations Council president for the
- 17 past two years. She has been part owner of
- 18 Louisiana Creole Gumbo for over 33 years -- it's
- 19 some good gumbo y'all -- and owned and operated
- 20 Prime Time Travel, both businesses are located
- 21 within the 7th Precinct and
- 22 WHEREAS, Ms. Constance Bailey retired
- 23 from the Detroit Public Schools where she was the
- 24 custodian supervisor, she's currently a member of
- 25 the Gratiot Business Association and Rivertown



- 1 Detroit Association where she holds the position
- 2 of secretary.
- 3 She also volunteers at the Riverfront
- 4 Conservancy and has participated in its annual
- 5 Fishing Festival for the ast nine years
- 6 WHEREAS Ms. Bailey organized activities
- 7 and daily trips for senior citizens. One program
- 8 is Travel Tuesdays and allows seniors to go
- 9 around the world without leaving home.
- 10 She is currently the secretary of the
- 11 Detroit Chapter of the American Association
- 12 Retired Persons, AARP, and also volunteers for
- 13 the parade company
- 14 WHEREAS Ms. Bailey volunteers for
- 15 community events and other scholarships at King
- 16 High School, she participated in feeding the
- 17 police throughout the years and constantly puts
- 18 on -- put the needs of her fellow citizens ahead
- 19 of her own.
- 20 She has always been interested in
- 21 police community relations, always thinking of
- 22 new ideas to keep the community involved and
- 23 contributing her time and efforts to bring the
- 24 police and the community they serve closer.
- NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the



- 1 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners speaking
- 2 for the citizens of the city of Detroit and the
- 3 Detroit Police Department acknowledge,
- 4 generosity, giving spirit of Ms. Constance
- 5 Bailey. Her commitment and years of dedication
- 6 to supporting the community of the 7th Precinct
- 7 and the citizens throughout the city of Detroit
- 8 merits our highest regards. Detroit Board of
- 9 Police Commissioners.
- 10 (APPLAUSE).
- 11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: She said thank
- 12 you. But, you know, I just want to add Ms.
- 13 Bailey and her daughter does so much work right
- 14 here in the 7th Precinct community relations. I
- 15 know them both for many many years and when I say
- 16 that's some good gumbo, that's some good gumbo
- 17 and I normally go on Sundays and stop by, so they
- 18 got the Sunday specials and all of the other
- 19 stuff, so -- when I say it's some good gumbo,
- 20 it's some goof gumbo, so --
- 21 COMMISSIONER BROWN: You forgot about
- 22 the red beans and rice.
- 23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yeah, red beans
- 24 and rice and the catfish and the cornbread.
- DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Your mother is



- 1 revered by the City Council, Detroit Police
- 2 Department, this honorable body, so the awards
- 3 continue. I'll start with the Spirit of Detroit
- 4 Award.
- 5 As the Commander and Captain of the 7th
- 6 Precinct approach, and I read it.
- 7 Spirit of Detroit Award is presented
- 8 herewith as an expression of the gratitude and
- 9 esteem of the citizens of Detroit. Ms. Constance
- 10 Bailey in recognition of exceptional achievement,
- 11 outstanding leadership and dedication of
- 12 improving the quality of life. Signed by all
- 13 nine councilmembers.
- (APPLAUSE).
- DEP. CHIEF BARREN: In addition -- and
- 16 the good Commander will present this one.
- 17 COMM. MAHONE: This is also not for
- 18 you, this is also for your mother, Ms. Bailey.
- 19 And it says in recognition for the following
- 20 outstanding service and cooperation, your
- 21 involvement in the community and services to the
- 22 city of Detroit demonstrate a spirit and
- 23 commitment that's worthy of recognition. We
- 24 appreciate everything your mom does from the time
- 25 she takes out of her busy schedule to come up and



- 1 mentor young offices at the 7th Precinct to
- 2 feeding us to just being there when we need her.
- For example, we got our Halloween party
- 4 coming up, I know she going to be there.
- 5 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Thank you.
- 6 (APPLAUSE).
- 7 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Mr. Chair, I
- 8 would move for the adoption of the resolution
- 9 honoring Ms. Constance Bailey.
- 10 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Support.
- 11 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly
- 12 moved and supported. Discussion? Those in favor
- 13 aye.
- 14 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?
- 16 Motion carries. I can personally attest to Ms.
- 17 Bailey's efforts in terms of her leadership of
- 18 the 7th Precinct and her long-standing efforts
- 19 over the years to this community and I would
- 20 definitely confirm Commissioner Burton about the
- 21 meals they serve, it's been a mainstay for many
- 22 many years. I didn't know her involvement, but I
- 23 really appreciate that type of business and offer
- 24 us, it's the best in Detroit.
- 25 COMMISSIONER CARTER: They have a food



- 1 truck too now. We're going to move on to our
- 2 Deputy Chief reporting out for Chief Craig.
- 3 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Thank you. So
- 4 through the Chair, I would like to reflect before
- 5 I have my opening remarks as to Sgt. Stevan
- 6 Miller again serving the Detroit Police
- 7 Department for just under 25 years and then
- 8 moving on to Wayne County Sheriff's Department.
- 9 His death, again, touched us all, very untimely.
- 10 In fact, I was down in Orlando, Florida for a
- 11 conference and he was scheduled to come down to
- 12 the same conference the day of his untimely
- death, was it was a big impact for us down in
- 14 Florida.
- Remembering his wife who's also a
- 16 retired sergeant from the Detroit Police
- 17 Department, please have your prayers for that
- 18 family and the children, to that couple and could
- 19 we have a moment of silence, thank you.
- 20 (MOMENT OF SILENCE.)
- 21 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Thank you. Moving
- 22 into the remarks I would like to start with the
- 23 most recent media story. Many of you have seen
- 24 the off-duty officer-involved incident. That
- 25 matter is under investigation.



- 1 It does appear that his actions were
- 2 consistent with the law and department policy.
- 3 As you know, he will still be reviewed, both
- 4 criminal review and an internal review just to
- 5 ensure that all of the department policies were
- 6 followed as relates to him taking action and,
- 7 again, the laws of the state of Michigan.
- 8 But just for a preliminary look I'm
- 9 confident to say that everything does look in a
- 10 positive direction. It appears that he did
- intervene to assist and save that young woman's
- 12 life after he saw this individual standing there
- 13 with a gun to her head, so I just want to get
- 14 some clarity on that.
- 15 Tomorrow is the graduation. Detroit
- 16 Police Department has a graduation of Recruit
- 17 Class 2018-G. Those who are able to attend will
- 18 be at 23500 West Seven Mile and it starts at
- 19 10:30 AM.
- 20 Moving into the crime, we'll start with
- 21 homicides. We are showing a 7 percent decrease.
- 22 In 2017 year to date there were 217 as compared
- 23 to 201 in 2018. Sexual assaults, we're showing
- 24 an increase and we all discussed that in many of
- 25 the meetings as to why the increase happened, but



- 1 467 compared to 688 compared to this time last
- 2 year.
- Robberies are down 13 percent, 2017 a
- 4 total of 2,062, down just under 200 with 1,804
- 5 again for 13 percent decrease.
- 6 Carjackings are up 5 percent, it was
- 7 236 compared to 247 this time last year. We did
- 8 make some really good arrests recently. We
- 9 should see some decreases in that number as we
- 10 move forward as we close out this quarter.
- 11 We look at aggravated assaults, we have
- 12 a 5 percent reduction. There were 6,860 in 2017
- 13 compared to 6,503 in 2018.
- Ms. Bridget Lamar couldn't make it, she
- 15 was bringing in the list of our officers that
- 16 were injured. She had an untimely secondary area
- 17 to cover and could not make it, so we're have
- 18 that for you at the next board meeting.
- 19 That's concludes my report.
- 20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any questions or
- 21 concerns for the Deputy Chief?
- 22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Deputy Chief
- 23 Barren, since Detroit have been towing -- started
- the towing process has there been any backlash
- 25 from the towers, and what I mean by that is are



- 1 there towers out there that are not participating
- 2 because of the steps that have been taken by the
- 3 City of Detroit.
- 4 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: And through the
- 5 Chair, so I did have a conversation with DC
- 6 Bettison today who's having a handle on that type
- 7 of matters and he reports that there's been no
- 8 backlash. He did report that there have been
- 9 city towers that may have had some dirty looks if
- 10 you will, but no backlash as of today's date.
- 11 COMMISSIONER CARTER: And the second
- 12 thing, do you know when we're going to be able to
- 13 get that list? It has to be available if they
- 14 were using the tow rotation it shouldn't be that
- 15 hard.
- DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Yeah, and I do have
- 17 that in my notes when I conclude this meeting to
- 18 get with DC Bettison, of course our liaison
- 19 through the Chair and I'll have him get with Mr.
- 20 Hicks and provide that. We should have that
- 21 ready to go.
- 22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.
- COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Deputy Chief, do
- 24 you have any more information about -- it's been
- 25 reported in the media that it took four and a



- 1 half days for a response time for the police to
- 2 show up?
- 3 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Yes and so that
- 4 story is not accurate. In fact, the Chief is
- 5 scheduled to make some commentary or that issue.
- 6 It looks like from the preliminary look when
- 7 Comm. Arnold Williams reported out it was
- 8 actually a four-hour delay, still some concerns,
- 9 but the report of it being a four-day delay, that
- 10 was not accurate, and again, the Chief will be
- 11 addressing that with that particular news outlet
- 12 that put that information out.
- 13 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I certainly hope
- 14 that's not accurate.
- 15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other
- 16 questioning or comments for the Deputy Chief?
- 17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I do have a
- 18 question. I'd like to know, I guess the citizens
- 19 of District 5 would like to know what is the
- 20 current police response time overall versus those
- 21 at green light locations?
- 22 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: So the green light
- 23 -- and, Commander, you can chime in as far as
- 24 your particular area, but the responses are
- 25 still within that -- for Priority 1's within



- 1 that 5 to 7 minute time frame.
- 2 Commander, you going to chime up on
- 3 yours in the precinct?
- 4 COMM. MAHONE: So your question was
- 5 how is the response to green light locations
- 6 compared to other Priority 1 locations, is that
- 7 your question, Commissioner Burton?
- 8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.
- 9 COMM. MAHONE: Actually there's no
- 10 difference. Both are considered Priority 1
- 11 issues for the police department and when a call
- 12 comes in and you have more than one Priority 1
- 13 event to deal with you take a triage approach to
- 14 these calls.
- 15 If there is a shooting that is
- 16 occurring, we respond to the shooting first and
- 17 then we work our way down the line. Now, I can
- 18 tell you that the calls coming into 9-1-1 are
- 19 prioritized from 1 through 5.
- 20 Please understand I don't work at
- 21 Dispatch, I never have, but I can tell you that
- 22 green light locations are considered Priority 1's
- 23 and if we have a group of Priority 1's that come
- 24 at one time the Dispatch triages those calls to
- 25 ensure that was service those in dire need first.



- 1 DEP. CHIEF BARREN: Thank you.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. If
- 3 there is no further questions or concerns, thank
- 4 you Deputy Chief Barren for reporting out.
- 5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair, not a
- 6 concern, just a comment to DC Barren. I reside
- 7 in the 3rd District and we had an issue about
- 8 speeding in our neighborhoods, so I want to just
- 9 thank DC Barren because he's the core of getting
- 10 that done through Chief Craig that we now have an
- 11 electronic device that sits on Dequindre Street
- 12 that is between Seven Mile and State Fair. It
- 13 has been a tremendous response as far as slowing
- 14 down, so we want to thank him because a lot of
- 15 places are having these problems and all over the
- 16 city of Detroit there are now going to be speed
- 17 cushions. These cushions are going to be put in
- 18 the area of schools and where the children are
- 19 going back and forth to school that the
- 20 motorists, now the speed cushions are going to be
- 21 out there on the street, so we now have them.
- 22 One is one Fenlawn, that's by the Mason
- 23 Elementary School and that's from Eight Mile to
- 24 Outer Drive.
- 25 So just to thank you personally and



- 1 thank the Chief and Mr. Chair, may I recognize my
- 2 Commander Slappy and the president of the
- 3 community relations Ms. Kim Jackson, could you
- 4 stand up, it's good to see my people. Thank you
- 5 for coming.
- 6 (APPLAUSE.)
- 7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 8 Commissioner Burch, for reporting out. I know
- 9 it's been dear to your heart a concern, I'm
- 10 pleased that they were able to respond to the
- 11 issues in the community. And one thing about it,
- 12 you do due diligence to stay on topic and stay
- 13 focused on the issues.
- Before we call up the Commander from
- 15 the 7th Precinct which is next going to report
- 16 out, I think we're on schedule for that, I just
- 17 want to, on a sad note, make an announcement that
- 18 Chief Rene Hall, Dallas Police Chief, mother
- 19 passed Bonny Jean Hall and her body is at Swanson
- 20 on Six Mile Road and family hour viewing would be
- 21 taking place on Saturday I think like 1 o'clock
- 22 to 4 or 5, whatever, but the funeral is going to
- 23 be on Monday, October 15 at Triumph Church on
- 24 2760 East Grand Boulevard, so keep our retired
- 25 Deputy Chief and now Chief of Police in your



- 1 prayers and reach out and how you've going to
- 2 reach out, just want to make notation of that
- 3 because she is part of out family, so.
- 4 Comm. Mahone, did you take your seat?
- 5 7th Precinct is going to present out at this
- 6 particular time and 7th Precinct is dear to my
- 7 heart. I started my career there back in 1971,
- 8 '71 to '76.
- 9 COMM. MAHONE: I won't tell you my age
- 10 at that time, sir, but --
- 11 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's good to see
- 12 you're still standing.
- 13 COMM. MAHONE: So I just want to say
- 14 welcome to the 7th Precinct and I really love
- 15 this building where we're having this meeting in.
- 16 And at the end of this meeting I hope everyone
- 17 take an opportunity to go see what's in back, get
- 18 your own mugshot like I did before they started.
- 19 Also, Capt. Hope, my partner, is going
- 20 to be reporting out for the 7th Precinct tonight,
- 21 so with that being said, Capt. Hope.
- 22 CAPT. HOPE: Welcome, everybody. I'm
- 23 going to make this short. So for our crime
- 24 addressing our issues here, n our CSC 1 and 3,
- 25 during the past 28 days we have experienced one



- 1 additional incident of CSC and that's as compared
- 2 to the previous 28-day period where we had five
- 3 versus the four.
- 4 The majority of these incidents
- 5 involved are with known offenders and family
- 6 members. In our categories of robberies during
- 7 the past 28 days we've had a steady consistent
- 8 flow of nine robberies as compared to the
- 9 previous 28-day period which also reflects nine
- 10 robberies.
- In our aggravated assault category
- 12 during the past 28 days we've experienced 11
- 13 additional incidents of aggravated assault as
- 14 compared to the previous 28-day period 48 versus
- 15 37. However, year-to-date we only experienced
- one incident over that year's period.
- 17 In our burglary category during the
- 18 past 28 days we've experienced four fewer
- 19 incidents of burglary as compared to the previous
- 20 28 days being 28 compared to 26 -- my apologies,
- 21 22 compared to the 26.
- 22 In our larceny category during the past
- 23 28 days we have experienced 15 fewer incidents of
- larceny as compared to the previous 28-day period
- 25 where there were 106 versus the 121. Here,



- 1 however, year to date we have experienced an
- 2 increase of 18 percent and this is primarily due
- 3 to event-driven activities in the 7th Precinct.
- In our motor vehicle theft, during the
- 5 last 28 days we've experienced five fewer
- 6 incidents of motor vehicle theft as compared to
- 7 the 28-day period 47 versus the 52.
- 8 Our strategies here at the 7th Precinct
- 9 have included our partnerships, Homicide, Gang
- 10 Intelligence, Major Violators, Traffic
- 11 Enforcement, Tactical Response Units MSP on our
- 12 border all come into the 7th Precinct to assist
- 13 us, especially with our event-driven activities.
- We also have weekly deployment plans
- 15 and directed patrols. All burglary locations are
- 16 processed for prints as well as DNA. We have our
- 17 village patrols, we have increased our patrols in
- 18 the Eastern Market area as well.
- 19 We have an east side embedded traffic
- 20 NPO who is Cpl. Robins now who is handling your
- 21 enforcement complaints if you will.
- 22 Moving on, we also have our custom
- 23 notifications and this is where we visit
- 24 individuals we believe may be involved in crime
- in the future and we speak to them along with



- 1 their families. This is our Cease Fire model.
- We also have Jefferson Beat, Joseph
- 3 Campau Atwater flat and Jefferson Corridor beat.
- 4 We have our River Walk, Dequindre Cut bicycle
- 5 patrol as well.
- 6 And with these strategies in place this
- 7 has resulted with our current double digit or
- 8 single digit reductions in the following
- 9 categories. N our homicides we're 12 versus 12,
- 10 we're even in that category.
- 11 As it relates to our robberies, we have
- 12 a 28 percent reduction year-to-date which
- 13 reflects 46 fewer incidents from 118 versus the
- 14 164.
- In our burglary category we have a 21
- 16 percent reduction year-to-date which reflects 71
- fewer incidents, 341 versus the 270.
- 18 In our motor vehicle theft we've
- 19 experienced a 4 percent reduction year-to-date
- 20 which reflects 18 fewer incidents of 443 versus
- 21 461.
- Our neighborhood police officers, they
- 23 are deployed seven days a week. They work nights
- 24 as well. They perform burglary wrap-arounds
- 25 responding to citizens and businesses who



- 1 experienced a break-in for crime hardening with
- 2 options of becoming a green light partner.
- 3 Our NPO programs include our Seniors
- 4 Movie Night, our Captain Senior Safety Tips,
- 5 coffee with our cop and Comm. Mahone and our
- 6 Captain's Corner where we just kick it.
- 7 And if I can, our team is here if I can
- 8 introduce them at this time. I have our NPO Sqt.
- 9 Denmark, thank you. I have NPO Samuel Balogen,
- 10 I have NPO Sean Duncan, NPO Del Corbitt, I have
- 11 NPO Tonya Stribly and we also have a Cpl. Ursula
- 12 Miller who's also been filling in as well.
- In our recent or upcoming events, we
- 14 had scheduled our Harvest Festival which will be
- 15 October 31, 2018 and that's going to be held at
- 16 the 7th Precinct and that's going to be from ages
- 17 up to 10 for 4:30 PM to 7 PM. That's Halloween,
- 18 ages up to 10 from 4:30 to 7 PM.
- 19 Who have our Haunted Garden and that's
- 20 going to be really fun. Last year we did it, we
- 21 threw it together and it was an overwhelming
- 22 response for it so we're going to do it again
- 23 this year and we're going to run those dates on
- 24 October 30th and the 31st at the 7th Precinct and
- 25 it will be open to all of you. And that will be



- 1 from 7 PM to 10 PM.
- 2 We're planning for our Turkey Bingo and
- 3 that's going to be November 17 and that's going
- 4 at Sacred Heart starting at around 11 AM. We
- 5 also have up and coming our annual community fall
- 6 fest and that's going to be with Grass Roots and
- 7 that's scheduled for October 14 at Karen Park and
- 8 that's going to be from noon until dark.
- 9 And then finally we have our Coffee
- 10 with the Cop and with Comm. Mahone and that's
- 11 going to be October 16 held at 1000 Mack Avenue,
- one of your green light locations McDonald's
- 13 restaurant.
- 14 And at this time if I can take the time
- 15 to acknowledge some very special members who are
- 16 here today and we have a very special award if I
- 17 can call the Commander back up here with me.
- And the first award, you all, this is
- 19 really really special. The Commander and I --
- 20 well, this is how it's going.
- 21 Detroit Police 7th Precinct presents
- 22 the Distinguished Spirit of Detroit Award to
- 23 Ms. Crystal Fields Crystal?
- 24 (APPLAUSE.)
- 25 CAPT. HOPE: I tried to get her here



- 1 without telling her. She said she had to meet a
- 2 deadline, I said you need to come now. So
- 3 Crystal does a lot for us. She's part of JEI at
- 4 Americore, she works at Wayne State University,
- 5 she places her people in the gap when we don't
- 6 have the necessary resources and you're talking
- 7 about without assistance with resources.
- 8 Your availability, your time, your
- 9 energy that you put into everything that you do,
- 10 we love you for that, and your award reads: The
- 11 Spirit of Detroit is a spirit of grace that lifts
- 12 us up enabling us to enjoy all the blessings,
- 13 liberty and rights that we have been endowed with
- 14 by our Creator. Inasmuch as you have through
- 15 your continued support, encouragement,
- 16 dedication, compassion and integrity displayed
- 17 the embodiment of that type of spirit to the 7th
- 18 Precinct.
- 19 The people of Detroit, the city of
- 20 grace, and to the people of Michigan the state of
- 21 grace we are compelled to present you this award.
- 22 May God's grace continually bless all of your
- 23 endeavors making you successful in all the work
- of your hands.
- 25 (APPLAUSE).



- 1 MS. FIELDS: This is a complete
- 2 surprise, I'm honored and humbled actually and
- 3 we're very impressed at JEI with the response and
- 4 the cooperation that we've had with the Detroit
- 5 Police Department and we're working tirelessly to
- 6 improve the relationship between civilians and
- 7 the police.
- 8 And so I'm standing on a lot of
- 9 shoulders, so it's not just me. Thank you again.
- 10 (APPLAUSE.)
- 11 COMM. MAHONE: So this is going to be
- 12 our last award. You know, we only get an
- 13 opportunity to do once a year, so we want to make
- 14 it special for No. 7.
- 15 So next award we're going to give to --
- 16 this is going to be an unsung hero award and
- 17 we're going to give this to Officer Fred
- 18 Williams.
- 19 Fred, could you stand up here?
- 20 (APPLAUSE.)
- 21 COMM. MAHONE: While Fred is making his
- 22 way up here I just want to tell you a little bit
- 23 about him. He's a 17-year veteran of the Detroit
- 24 Police Department and when I came to No. 7 we had
- 25 a number of computer hiccups that I was trying to



- 1 find a way to work out and what I found out was
- 2 that Fred was my resident computer expert and
- 3 he's bad, that's all I'll tell you. Anytime that
- 4 I have an issue, all I need to do is make a phone
- 5 call it could be 9 o'clock, 10 o'clock at night,
- 6 and he is on it.
- 7 All I have to do is ask for it, he
- 8 takes care of it. And I've always been
- 9 appreciative of that and I know I never come and
- 10 told you, I always just say thank you. I'm going
- 11 to thank you personally. I always say thank you
- 12 to everybody and please and that's just me, but
- 13 he's on it. I never have to check behind him,
- 14 it's always done.
- 15 But in addition to that, he refurbishes
- 16 computers, and so what he does out of the
- 17 goodness of his heart he takes laptops and he
- 18 refurbishes these laptops and he gives them to
- 19 his fellow officers, so we have a bunch of kids
- 20 running around the 7th Precinct right now with
- 21 computers he's taking care of with love and that
- 22 comes from his heart.
- 23 And I just want you to know, man, I
- 24 appreciate and even when you think I document
- 25 know it, I know it because the kids come and tell



- 1 me and they really really truly appreciate
- 2 everything that you've done for them.
- 3 And the last thing I want to say on a
- 4 personal note is that recently I had to buy my
- 5 kid a computer and so my kid was going to college
- 6 and I was kind of up in the air. I'm not a
- 7 computer person, I not a computer -- I guess --
- 8 geek or person so I was on the hook to spend a
- 9 lot of money for a computer. He convinced me to
- 10 get a used computer, saved me \$1,000, my kid is
- 11 super happy, so again thank you.
- 12 (APPLAUSE.)
- 13 CAPT. HOPE: I'm not going to read it,
- 14 the words are similar, but Fred is my unsung hero
- 15 because often times the Commander and I, we get
- 16 that 2, 3 or 4 o'clock in the morning call from
- 17 the officers and some of the things that I did
- 18 not know that when some of those calls stopped it
- 19 was because he was taking them and that is what
- 20 big brothers, uncles or whatever little name that
- 21 you want to give him, and I'm so grateful for you
- 22 standing in the gap on our behalf, and that's why
- 23 you're my unsung hero.
- 24 (APPLAUSE.)
- 25 CAPT. HOPE: And that will conclude my



- 1 presentation, if there's any questions.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, any
- 3 questions or comments? I do have a comment. I
- 4 just want to say outstanding, this is excellent
- 5 when you recognize civilians and officers who go
- 6 beyond the scope of what they do and giving back
- 7 and I think this sort -- we lift that up and we
- 8 really thank you and I just want to say to Capt.
- 9 Hope with the commanding officer when we convened
- 10 as commissioners in 2014 and the separation of
- 11 have 7th and 11th Precinct, I know you brought
- 12 the community together and I know your background
- 13 as being the real police too.
- I appreciate that and I just wish you
- 15 the best as you go forward in the 7th Precinct
- 16 and the Commander and the 7th Precinct as I
- 17 stated is dear to my heart and I'm glad that we
- 18 have a location -- you are where now?
- 19 CAPT. HOPE: 3501 Chene.
- 20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Chene and Mack,
- 21 just outstanding. I know you go from the river
- 22 -- it's a very important precinct and you're just
- 23 doing outstanding work and we really appreciate
- 24 that, so --
- 25 CAPT. HOPE: Thank you, sir.



- 1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the
- 2 Chair, I just want to also further acknowledge
- 3 the work over at No. 7. I remember when I first
- 4 came on as a commissioner in 2014 first when I
- 5 first heard about all of the community relations
- 6 meetings that Capt. Hope and them were doing No.
- 7 and you show up and I think you showed up to a
- 8 few of those as well, it was like 300, 500 people
- 9 in the room and you see them out the ballrooming
- 10 and like what's really going on. Oh, no, this is
- 11 the place to be.
- But then, again, to also see that the
- 13 grand opening of the 7th Precinct in 2016,
- 14 something where -- 7th Precinct didn't have a
- 15 precinct, a building of their own, for so many
- 16 years, and then to see the 7th Precinct opening
- 17 up, it was like a birth to this community, and
- 18 also looking at 2014 and 2015 maybe Capt. Hope
- 19 can help me with those years, but they had to
- 20 travel so far from Nevada back down on this end
- 21 of their district or of their precinct and they
- 22 war still the No. 1 precinct in total reduction
- 23 of crime in 2014 and 2015.
- 24 And then looking at the community
- 25 policing, you know, so the work that Comm. Mahone



- 1 and Capt. Hope is doing at No. 7 is definitely
- 2 bringing that balance from the precinct level as
- 3 well as to the community.
- 4 It's just -- we can all look at all the
- 5 other precincts. Each precinct is unique, each
- 6 precinct has something special, but I like to say
- 7 its magic over here in the 7th Precinct, I mean.
- 8 Some of the things that they can do.
- 9 You looking at -- you look at, what you call
- 10 that, the King Homes, Capt. Hope and the NPO Sam
- 11 Belogin, they go over there and they getting
- 12 folks to talk and speak up where they were just
- 13 so used to being silent, won't speak up on
- 14 anything. Things could be happening in and
- 15 around the area, and they just won't speak up.
- She go over there with something called
- 17 Straight Talk. Nobody never heard of Straight
- 18 Talk, and then she gets the not only the
- 19 community involved and say, "Why don't y'all come
- on over here", so she gets the local leadership
- and community and everybody goes over and has
- 22 Straight Talk.
- 23 But I want to end it on Sam. Some
- 24 little kid got a basketball in his hand and he
- looks at Sam and say, "I want to go one on one



- 1 with you", Sam grabbed the basketball and twirls
- 2 it on his finger and hands it back to the young
- 3 boy or whatever, but they haven't saw -- they saw
- 4 something special that day.
- 5 When I say it's something magical over
- 6 here going on in No. 7 I really mean it
- 7 tremendously because you don't see -- when you
- 8 turn to the news you hear negativity about law
- 9 enforcement, but that young boy was inspired to
- 10 say, you know what, I want to be like you and
- 11 this is little skinny kid with a basketball in
- 12 his hand, he says I want to be like Sam.
- 13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 14 Commissioner Burton.
- 15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: That mean my time
- 16 is up.
- 17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.
- 18 Appreciate your remarks. The next item of
- 19 business will be -- and thank you 7th Precinct if
- 20 I haven't said that before.
- 21 We want to move on the marijuana update
- 22 we have here with us Assistant Corporation
- 23 Counsel Ms. Kim James reporting out.
- 24 Thank you.
- MS. JAMES: Thank you, good evening,



- 1 commissioners and good evening to the members of
- 2 the public. Thank you so much for having us here
- 3 tonight.
- 4 I'm also a resident of the 5th District
- 5 and i just want to start with an apology because
- 6 I cannot stay until the end of the meeting
- 7 because my son is 16 years old and he is at his
- 8 first day of his first job, and so I have to pick
- 9 him up from work when I get finished talking to
- 10 you all, so if the commissioner permit we can
- 11 keep this -- I'm going to try and talk for like
- 12 10 minutes and then if you have questions we can
- 13 take the questions at that point if that will
- 14 work.
- Next slide. Okay, so my name is Kim
- 16 James and I am -- actually my title is
- 17 Supervising Assistant Corporation Counsel for the
- 18 City of Detroit. I work in the Law Department
- 19 and I do a lot of land use policy, and so I've
- 20 worked on a team that's put together all of the
- 21 medical marijuana ordinances for the City of
- 22 Detroit over the past three years.
- 23 So recently the City Council passed a
- 24 new ordinance this year, it was effective July 31
- 25 and it's going to go into effect this next



- 1 Monday, application are going to start to be
- 2 taken, so there's going to be a lot of new
- 3 activity.
- 4 What you see in front of you is a
- 5 picture -- well, two pictures of the city of
- 6 Detroit and you all may recall back when the City
- 7 -- the City did not start regulating medical
- 8 marijuana until around 2015 when we passed a
- 9 licensing ordinance and a zoning ordinance where
- 10 these could go.
- 11 When we got started regulating it
- 12 looked like the one on the left where it says
- 13 2015, there was almost 300 illegal dispensaries
- operating. And so due to the lot of teamwork,
- 15 specially with huge help of Detroit's finest DPD
- 16 there was -- we were able to get -- start
- 17 regulating them and all of the dispensaries that
- 18 are operating right now are depicted on the one
- 19 on the right-hand side. So it's gone down to --
- 20 there are 70 that have been allowed by the City
- 21 of Detroit at this point.
- 22 So feel really proud of that that we
- 23 were able to start to reduce the illegal
- 24 operations. Next slide.
- 25 So the city started off with -- the



- 1 State of Michigan passed a law back in 2008 that
- 2 allows the medical use of marijuana and it
- 3 created like a caregiver system where caregivers
- 4 could grow marijuana for patients and that was
- 5 basically about it.
- In 2016 the legislature of Michigan
- 7 passed a law called the Michigan Medical
- 8 Marijuana Facilities Licensing Act. It was
- 9 signed into law in September of 2016 and it
- 10 allowed for retail and commercial locations.
- 11 And so it allowed states to license
- 12 growers, processors, secured transporters which
- is truckers that drive marijuana around,
- 14 laboratories which is called safety compliance
- 15 facilities and what they called provisioning
- 16 centers. Some of you may know it as dispensary,
- 17 pot shop, but the state law calls it provisioning
- 18 center.
- 19 So the law also authorized the cities
- 20 to pass laws about these type of facilities as
- 21 long as they don't preempt the state law and so
- 22 the city -- you probably remember, does everyone
- 23 remembers last year on the ballot, the marijuana
- 24 question. So what that did was basically opt
- into the State's program on out behalf.



- 1 The City fought it, but ended up that
- 2 the Court ruled that the licensing ordinance that
- 3 was passed by the voters was valid and so we had
- 4 to also pass a zoning ordinance to regulate where
- 5 these facilities could go. And so that's what
- 6 the City Council did back in July.
- 7 So at the time that they passed the
- 8 licensing act they also -- this is why I brought
- 9 this to you because it's very important to law
- 10 enforcement. They also passed the marijuana
- 11 tracking act which requires every single facility
- 12 that's going to be licensed by the State of
- 13 Michigan, that's dispensaries, growers, truckers,
- labs and processors, have to use a third-party
- 15 electronic tracking system, and so it worked from
- 16 both ways. Move to the next slide, please.
- 17 It's a regulatory compliance tool for
- 18 law enforcement and it's also like an inventory
- 19 tool for the actual vendors who are using the --
- 20 who are running these facilities.
- 21 So the way that all of the marijuana
- 22 plants will be tracked, it's called the
- 23 seed-to-sale system and when they are grown and
- 24 they're in a clone in a little plant size it gets
- 25 what's called a RFID tag and it's technically --



- 1 they say that it's 90 percent faster than reading
- 2 a barcode and they use these gun-type devices,
- 3 laser-type devices, to track inventory. So an
- 4 owner of like a grow operation for example, if
- 5 you have 100 plants in a room they can go in with
- 6 their tagging device and count every single plant
- 7 from many -- 10 or 15 feet away. They can
- 8 determine every single plant and then that RFID
- 9 tag stays with that marijuana throughout the
- 10 entire process until it's sold to the consumer.
- 11 So it goes through -- sometimes it goes
- 12 through processing where they make certain
- 13 products out of it like edibles or brownies or
- oils from the skin, capsules, beverages, things
- 15 like that and this RFIS tag goes with the product
- 16 until it is sold. Next slide, please.
- 17 So what is a grower, there's three
- 18 types of growers that the State is going to
- 19 license, Class A, Class B and Class C, 500, 1,000
- 20 or 1,500 plants which seems like a lot.
- 21 And Class C license applicants or
- 22 operators are going to be allowed to stack them,
- 23 so you could conceivably have a warehouse where
- there's multiple Class C licences growing, so
- 25 they could have thousands of plants growing.



- 1 When I get to telling you later about
- 2 the City's ordinance it will show how we went
- 3 into that, so it's not just an unlimited number
- 4 of plants that can be grown.
- 5 Processors, as I said, are making
- 6 product. Basic compliance facilities required to
- 7 test of the marijuana that's grown at two stages,
- 8 after -- yeah, they send a small sample to the
- 9 tester and they don't ever give it back -- no,
- 10 so they use scientific methods to test the sample
- of marijuana for contaminants, but there's
- 12 pesticides, mold, all of those things that would
- 13 be dangerous to a sick person with cancer or
- 14 something like that who would be using this
- 15 medication.
- And they also test the potency so that
- 17 the buyer can -- it's supposed to be on the label
- 18 when you buy it so you kind of know how strong is
- 19 this or is it going to make me sleepy, is it
- 20 going to make me up, excited. So all of those
- 21 things are required to be tested.
- A secure transporter is required to
- 23 transport marijuana from -- between facilities,
- 24 and so if you have -- you're growing all this
- 25 marijuana and you want to get rid of out and sell



- 1 it to a dispensary you have to have a licensed
- 2 secure transporter to transport it for you, and
- 3 you also have to transport any of the money.
- 4 As you may be aware, cannabis
- 5 businesses are usually cash businesses because
- 6 they have difficulty using the banking system
- 7 just because of the contradictions between
- 8 federal law and what's allowed in the states, so
- 9 most banks don't usually allow cannabis money to
- 10 be deposited, so it's cash, so it's very --
- 11 presents a huge security risk as you can imagine.
- 12 And then provisioning centers are just
- 13 dispensaries where patients can go and I figure
- 14 most of you probably know -- because we've had
- 15 medical marijuana in this state for a long time
- 16 -- so medical marijuana patients are people who
- 17 have conditions like cancer, multiple sclerosis,
- 18 chronic pain, HIV, various types of condition.
- 19 They've actually added some this year like
- 20 arthritis, things like that.
- 21 So if you have one of those conditions,
- 22 a doctor can sign a recommendation for you and
- 23 then you can register with the State to be
- 24 allowed to purchase cannabis products at a
- 25 licensed facility. Next slide, please.



- 1 So our new zoning ordinance that was
- 2 just passed, it defines a zoning district in the
- 3 city of Detroit where all of these types of
- 4 facilities can go. They're all required to have
- 5 a public hearing.
- 6 Has anybody in here ever gone to one of
- 7 the public hearings the City has held for a
- 8 marijuana facility? Okay, well, when they have
- 9 been, these are zoning hearings, lots of people
- 10 usually come and there's people on both sides of
- 11 the issue, so it becomes sort of controversial at
- 12 some point.
- There's no variances for spacing
- 14 restrictions. In the previous program the City
- 15 allowed variances from the Board of Zoning
- 16 Appeals, but in this case there's not going to be
- 17 any variances going forward.
- 18 Let me just say there's spacing
- 19 restrictions. In the city we have what's called
- 20 drug-free zones and so no facility can be within
- 21 1,000 feet of a drug-free zone, so that includes
- 22 schools, libraries, daycare centers, public
- 23 housing, those are the main important ones.
- 24 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Churches?
- MS. JAMES: Well, churches aren't a



- 1 drug-free zone, but yes, there also not allowed
- 2 to be within 1,000 feet of a church or a
- 3 controlled-use which is a liquor store or another
- 4 provisioning center. And please go to the next
- 5 slide.
- 6 So does everyone know what the zoning
- 7 districts are? No, okay. So basically in zoning
- 8 -- I'm a land use attorney, so every time I say
- 9 this people are like what are these districts?
- 10 Well, if you live in a residential
- 11 district it's usually defined as an R district,
- 12 so R1, R2, R3, R4, R5 and as you get higher in
- 13 number it's more intense.
- So an R1 district would be single
- 15 family homes, an R6 would be multi-family
- 16 apartments and things like that.
- 17 A B district is -- what do you think
- 18 that would be? Business, right. So B1 is less
- 19 intense, B6 is higher intensity. Then we have M
- 20 districts which are industrial districts and so
- 21 it's the same scheme, M1 is less intense, M6 is
- 22 Marathon Petroleum.
- 23 So these are the districts where these
- 24 types of facilities would be allowed. Grower
- 25 facilities are only allowed in industrial



- 1 districts, that's a state law.
- 2 Processor facilities would be allowed
- 3 in B6 and M1 through M5. Provisioning centers
- 4 would be allowed in B2, B4, B5, B6 and M1 through
- 5 M4 and SD2 -- SD2 is just a special mixed use
- 6 district.
- 7 Safety compliance facilities are
- 8 allowed in most of the business districts and the
- 9 industrial districts and secure transport
- 10 facilities are allowed in B5, B6, and M1 through
- 11 M5. Next side, please.
- 12 So the spacing restrictions I talked
- 13 about. They can't be located in drug-free zones
- which a 1,000 feet from schools, parks,
- 15 libraries, childcare centers, youth activity
- 16 centers or public housing.
- 17 They can't be located within 1,000 feet
- 18 of religious institutions and it's a religious
- 19 institution that is identified as tax exempt
- 20 because there are a lot of churches that pop up,
- 21 but they aren't tax exempt and sometimes that's
- 22 part-time fish fry or whatever. Trust me, that
- 23 has happened.
- 24 So it's only the ones that have gone
- 25 through the process of getting their tax-exempt



- 1 status are considered a true church and so they
- 2 have to be 1,000 feet from those.
- 3 1,000 feet from liquor stores, pool
- 4 halls, arcades and, like I said, another
- 5 provisioning center.
- 6 So the approval process for the
- 7 facility -- and is anybody in here going to apply
- 8 for a medical marijuana facility? No. So you
- 9 probably don't need to know very much about this,
- 10 but what you should be is that what the City has
- 11 done, and this is part of what I do at work is
- 12 putting together a multi-departmental committee
- 13 to review all of the applications.
- 14 So we have -- we just met today and
- 15 we're going to be meeting probably all this next
- 16 week because the application process is going to
- 17 start on Monday, we're going to get a bunch of
- 18 applications. So a City rep from Building
- 19 Department, Health, DPD, Law, City Planning
- 20 Commission, Planning & Development, Fire, DPW and
- 21 the Inspector's Office, and also we have some
- 22 people from Treasury too just to look at taxes.
- 23 So the purpose of it is to collect
- 24 accurate information in advance of the public
- 25 hearings. What we found before in the first



- 1 program was that often times when we got to the
- 2 public hearing stage and there wasn't the right
- 3 documentation wasn't in the record, so we
- 4 wouldn't have any documentation about a church or
- 5 whether it was tax exempt.
- 6 So then if the applicant got denied and
- 7 it went to court we had the difficult time
- 8 proving the City's case. So what we're trying to
- 9 do now is front load as much of the documents
- 10 into the record as possible so that going forward
- 11 later we don't have a problem trying to defend
- 12 the city's decision. Next slide, please.
- 13 So what will the -- the committee is
- 14 called the MMFRC, the Medical Marijuana Facility
- 15 Review Committee, and the things that they will
- 16 review would be the site plan, the floor plan of
- 17 the interior, a comprehensive business plan that
- 18 includes operations, security, their waste
- 19 disposal, the impact on the neighborhood, a plan
- 20 for hiring Detroiters, all the income taxes, all
- 21 the police history, their estimated use of public
- 22 services, the types of materials and chemicals
- and equipment that they're going to be using.
- 24 And also another factor that we added
- 25 at the end was what community benefits does the



- 1 applicant intend to provide.
- 2 So these are the things that the
- 3 applicant has to provide that the Review
- 4 Committee will look at in considering whether or
- 5 not to recommend approval of one of these
- 6 facilities. Next slide, please.
- 7 Once that's complete, once the
- 8 committee has reviewed the applicant's package it
- 9 will come out with a recommendation that goes to
- 10 the hearing officer at the Building Department.
- 11 And they have a public hearing.
- 12 Notices will be sent to surrounding property
- 13 owners within 300 feet. So if you live within
- 14 300 feet of a proposed location, you're going to
- 15 get a notice and you're welcome to come to the
- 16 hearing and say how you feel about this business
- 17 being in your neighborhood or near where your
- 18 house is.
- 19 And after -- if the applicant is
- 20 approved, then they are able to continue their
- 21 application and get licensed by the State. And
- 22 so that's basically it in a nutshell. I don't
- 23 want to talk too much more, but does anyone have
- 24 any questions for me about how this will work?
- Yes, Commissioner.



- 1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Hold on, please.
- 2 The Chairman is going to ask for a point of
- 3 order. I'm going -- before the commission has an
- 4 opportunity to pose questions I want to make sure
- 5 that we entertain two or three questions from the
- 6 audience at this time and you can talk loudly and
- 7 if you would identify yourself, then you can
- 8 repeat the questions if we cannot hear it
- 9 clearly. Then we move to the commissioners, but
- 10 keep in mind, Commissioners, Ms. James is on a
- 11 time schedule, so you do have a handout and you
- 12 got the PowerPoint, but I'm not going to hold her
- 13 up in terms of what she got to do with her son.
- So if there's any questions that we
- 15 cannot entertain in that time frame, you can
- 16 always shoot the question to Mr. Hicks and we can
- 17 filter that, so she's indicated that she's on a
- 18 time slot.
- 19 Any questions?
- 20 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Mr. Chair,
- 21 before we do the questions, I really think that
- 22 there's one section that she did not cover that
- 23 everybody should know about and that's the tax
- 24 benefits to the local government, it's just like
- 25 one page.



- 1 MS. JAMES: Oh, thank you so much for
- 2 raising that. We skipped this by accident. So
- 3 everybody always says what's the benefit to the
- 4 City, why should we do this?
- 5 And so the reason -- one of the reasons
- 6 is because in our previous situation nobody was
- 7 regulating the income and, remember what I said,
- 8 it's all cash, so for purposes of income tax the
- 9 city has no idea how many money a dispensary is
- 10 making so until because we have the tracking
- 11 system, so every single sale that is made is
- 12 recorded and the State has a record of it.
- So the State is going to know exactly
- 14 how much money each of these dispensaries takes
- in and so a tax is imposed on each provisioning
- 16 center at the rate of 3 percent. That's like an
- 17 excise tax. It's in addition to the sales tax.
- 18 Actually they don't collect a sales tax for
- 19 medical, but when we have recreational which is
- 20 coming up, they're going to collect sales tax.
- 21 So the law requires that the taxes be
- 22 put into an excise fund that's administered by
- 23 the State Treasurer and the money in the fund has
- 24 to be allocated as follows: 25 percent goes to a
- 25 municipality which marijuana facility is located,



- 1 allocated in proportion to the number of
- 2 facilities.
- 3 So guess what city in the state is
- 4 probably going to have the most facilities? Us.
- 5 So we'll probably going to get a substantial
- 6 amount of that 25 percent which is great.
- 7 Also 30 percent to counties where
- 8 marijuana facilities are located and I'm pretty
- 9 sure Wayne County is going to be the one with the
- 10 most facilities, so we'll probably get a
- 11 substantial proportion of that as well.
- 12 And then 5 percent to counties -- and I
- 13 can't see the rest of it, but I know that it's
- 14 dedicated specifically to the sheriff, so that's
- 15 the extent of the benefits that comes to the City
- 16 of Detroit.
- 17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 18 Commissioner Dewaelsche for pointing that out.
- 19 So we have any questions from the audience, would
- 20 you stand and speak loudly.
- 21 MR. BROWN: Calvin Brown, I'm with the
- 22 Children's Center. Are there any things in the
- 23 provision that keeps the facilities from being
- 24 near facilities like ours that offer services for
- 25 families and children?



- 1 MS. JAMES: Absolutely. I'm not
- 2 familiar -- you said Children's Center?
- 3 MR. BROWN: We're a behavioral health
- 4 organization.
- 5 MS. JAMES: So the question was, is
- 6 there anything that keeps these types of
- 7 facilities away from children, the children's
- 8 health organization -- I can't remember what you
- 9 said --
- 10 MR. BROWN: Behavioral health
- 11 organization for children.
- 12 MS. JAMES: I would have to look
- 13 specifically to see how that particular
- organization is classified, but the law does
- 15 require that any of these facilities be 1,000
- 16 feet from daycare center, childcare centers,
- 17 youth activity centers and schools. So if it can
- 18 be classified as one of those, then yes, you
- 19 would not have any facilities within 1,000 feet
- 20 of you.
- 21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other question
- 22 from the audience?
- 23 UNKNOWN SPEAKER: I know it's early
- 24 yet, if the recreational bill referendum passes
- 25 do we know yet if new retail centers will be



- 1 established or if the pharmaceutical dispensaries
- 2 will be able to sell the recreational or it may
- 3 be too early to tell.
- 4 MS. JAMES: I can answer part of that.
- 5 So the question was will there be new facilities
- 6 if the recreational bill passes and will
- 7 pharmaceuticals -- you mean like CVS or
- 8 something like that, will CVS be able to sell
- 9 cannabis.
- 10 So what I didn't say before to you that
- 11 I should have said is that the new zoning
- 12 ordinance also limits the number of provisioning
- 13 centers to 75, so there's not going to be any new
- 14 provisioning centers because we have already
- 15 reached that limit, and when recreational, should
- it be approved, and I suspect it probably will be
- 17 -- should it be approved we will probably have to
- 18 do some tweaks to the ordinance to allow those
- 19 types to uses to co-exist, but at least at this
- 20 point because of federal laws it's not ever going
- 21 to be something that's sold at CVS until it's
- 22 federally recognized and RJ Reynolds buys
- 23 everybody out and starts selling it like
- 24 cigarettes. That's what will happen.
- 25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner



- 1 Dewaelsche, I think you have any question?
- 2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Yes, thank
- 3 you. So these medical marijuana facilities are
- 4 going to be called -- the ones that distribute
- 5 and sell and are retail -- are going to be called
- 6 provisioning centers?
- 7 MS. JAMES: That's correct.
- 8 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: On the page
- 9 where you talk about the transaction
- 10 requirements, it says here that daily and monthly
- 11 -- it's going to be limited daily and monthly
- 12 purchasing by the Medical Marijuana Licensing
- 13 Board is 2.5 ounces. Is that daily or is that
- 14 monthly?
- 15 MS. JAMES: That is the daily and that
- 16 is also -- that mirrors the Michigan Medical
- 17 Marijuana Act for registered patients who are
- 18 allowed to possess marijuana, if they were
- 19 stopped by the police in a car that is the amount
- 20 they are allowed to have on them. That's a lot
- 21 of marijuana, so it's always surprising to me
- 22 that they allow that, but, I don't now, in some
- 23 situations they may need that amount, so that's
- 24 the daily purchasing amount.
- 25 However, I know that the State --



- 1 because I participated in the working group for
- 2 the State to develop all of these rules. I know
- 3 that's a huge concern for the State. Like let's
- 4 say someone is going to each dispensary and
- 5 buying 2.5 ounces every day and then turning
- 6 around and selling it on the street, so that is
- 7 one of the State's main concerns and so they're
- 8 trying to address that through the tracking
- 9 system.
- 10 You know, and basically just like they
- 11 have to be a stop on people if they see that
- 12 there's a red flag where someone is buying more
- 13 than they are supposed to have. I believe the
- 14 limit might be 10 ounces a month, I think that's
- 15 what it is.
- 16 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And then as
- 17 it relates to the 75 sites, is that -- long term
- 18 is there a term for the 75 cap or is that
- 19 permanent?
- MS. JAMES: Well, that is permanent
- 21 unless the Honorable City Council decides to
- 22 change it.
- 23 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And then
- 24 there was a question raised earlier about how far
- 25 from a children's center. How far from



- 1 residential areas are we talking? What is the
- 2 threshold, what is the distance?
- 3 MS. JAMES: Is no restriction from
- 4 residential. You know, part of the reason for
- 5 that because the City and the State struggled
- 6 with this because this is supposed to -- it's
- 7 medical, it's medicine, and so a lot of patients
- 8 --
- 9 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: But we know
- 10 the people are going to be buying it are not
- 11 coming from Detroit, a lot of them are not.
- 12 MS. JAMES: The point of the -- it is
- 13 supposed to be medicine and so when we went
- 14 through the process of developing the ordinances
- 15 just as you all here are saying oh, no, there was
- 16 the same amount of people came in support and
- 17 said I'm a patient with cancer, I don't want to
- 18 go into an industrial area or go into a dangerous
- 19 area. I want to be able to buy my medicine in a
- 20 place where I feel safe and which is close to my
- 21 house.
- 22 So what we've tried to do is just
- 23 impose a lot of restrictions that we keep people
- 24 safe, basically no loitering in the parking lot,
- 25 all of those types of things, they can't let



- 1 smells migrate, they're supposed to have security
- 2 in place, a security plan, all of those types of
- 3 things we've tried to put in place to protect the
- 4 public.
- 5 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: When you have
- 6 the spacing restrictions and you have a listing
- 7 for the provisioning centers, does that also
- 8 apply, do those restrictions also apply to
- 9 growers, processors and transporters?
- 10 MS. JAMES: The spacing restriction
- 11 that applies to all of the facilities is the
- 12 drug-free zone. They are 1,000 feet from
- 13 schools, the daycare centers, parks, libraries.
- 14 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: So they don't
- 15 all apply to the growers, processors?
- 16 MS. JAMES: They don't have to be
- 17 separate from each other, no.
- 18 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And then you
- 19 have TMSO, what does that mean, is that an
- 20 acronym?
- 21 MS. JAMES: Yes, this is a lay terms
- 22 what means traditional main street overlay, and
- 23 so it's areas like Vernor in Southwest, over in
- 24 Rosedale there's an area -- I can't have all the
- 25 streets, but I can let you know if you want the



- 1 exact streets.
- 2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: I will ask. I
- 3 have a lot more -- I was just going to ask one
- 4 more question because I know you're on a time
- 5 restriction.
- 6 You said --
- 7 MS. JAMES: I'm sorry, he's at
- 8 Lafayette Foods, he's working.
- 9 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: You said that
- 10 the Advisory Committee was going to review the
- 11 applications and the impact that it would have on
- 12 the community.
- What are the thresholds, what impact
- 14 are you looking at as it affects the community?
- MS. JAMES: So what's important to
- 16 remember is that the committee is prior to the
- 17 conditional land use hearing. So I know you all
- 18 don't know zoning, you're not a zoning lawyer,
- 19 but a conditional land use hearing is gels when
- 20 an applicant want to open a business that is
- 21 considered basically detrimental, but there are
- 22 conditions that can put in it to make it
- 23 acceptable to the community. It's not always
- 24 bad, so that's why they're allowed to have a
- 25 public hearing so these conditions could come



- 1 forward.
- 2 And so the actual law says -- and this
- 3 is a zoning concept that has to be a finding in
- 4 the conditional land use hearing by the hearing
- 5 officer, so a conditional land use has to show
- 6 that it does not impede the normal and orderly
- 7 development of the surrounding property and it
- 8 cannot have the potential to endanger the social,
- 9 physical or economic well-being of the area,
- 10 including but not limited to health impacts,
- 11 truck routes to access the facility and the
- 12 blight violation history of the property or
- 13 property owners.
- 14 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And then my
- 15 final question, on Eight Mile there are 13, 13
- 16 provisioning centers currently and there's at
- 17 least one or two blocks where two of them are
- 18 almost next door to each other and according to
- 19 your restrictions here it says two cannot be
- 20 within, I don't know, 1,000 or 300 feet.
- 21 MS. JAMES: 1,000 feet.
- 22 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: So how is
- 23 that --
- 24 MS. JAMES: That is a really excellent
- 25 question and that is one of the reasons why we



- 1 took out the waivers for spacing restrictions.
- 2 On Eight Mile in the previous version of the
- 3 ordinance, and you can thank councilmember Lopez
- 4 for this because she's the one who got it out, in
- 5 the previous version of the ordinance that was in
- 6 place since 2016 in M districts dispensaries were
- 7 allowed to cluster next to each either and so
- 8 there's a lot of M area on Eight Mile and so
- 9 there tended to be -- there ended up being quite
- 10 a few on Eight Mile.
- 11 The ones that weren't on M districts
- 12 went to the Board of Zoning Appeals and got
- 13 variances so they can be -- to waive the spacing
- 14 restrictions from each other.
- 15 So we took out the ability to cluster
- 16 and we took out the ability to get a variance
- 17 from each other and you can also take some
- 18 comfort in that there won't be any more
- 19 provisioning centers approved.
- 20 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay, thank
- 21 you so much.
- 22 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair, may be
- 23 -- this is a hot topic. Are you familiar with
- 24 Eight Mile which you just said from Telegraph say
- 25 down to Gratiot or Kelly, if you go count them



- 1 you have just more than 15 as she said, so do you
- 2 go out and survey how close they are?
- 3 They can be right next door to each
- 4 other, so I want to know do you know of the one
- 5 that is right at Hoover where Hoover goes over
- 6 into the suburbs, but it's right there before
- 7 Groesbeck on Eight Mile.
- 8 MS. JAMES: On the Detroit side?
- 9 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, ma'am.
- 10 MS. JAMES: If you can tell me the
- 11 address I might know.
- 12 COMMISSIONER BURCH: No, no, I want to
- 13 tell you the name of it. This is what disturbs
- 14 us. Who gives the authority for them to name a
- 15 building after a district?
- 16 That marijuana clinic is called
- 17 District 3 and we live in District 3. How can
- 18 they name that after what -- that does not
- 19 identify us, could you tell me that.
- MS. JAMES: Well, I can't go into all
- 21 of the First Amendment issues, that there's
- 22 nothing offensive about those words.
- 23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You don't think
- 24 so? I mean, you are identifying people that we
- 25 are a marijuana capital like we're there and



- 1 that's all we do? You cannot do that to the
- 2 people whoever is here. My friends, we're
- 3 fighting that. You cannot call a marijuana
- 4 clinic District 3? How can you do that, that
- 5 doesn't make sense.
- 6 MS. JAMES: Like I said, there's no
- 7 particular ban on any of those words, so I was
- 8 aware of that name and that has been brought to
- 9 me before by Councilmember Benson. He did not
- 10 like that and I don't know why they named it
- 11 that.
- 12 COMMISSIONER BURCH: So we can't do
- 13 something about that though, correct?
- MS. JAMES: No, there's not really
- 15 anything we can do.
- 16 COMMISSIONER BELL: We're getting out
- 17 of order here. Commissioner, we cannot go back
- 18 and forth with this type of thing.
- 19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I apologize for
- 20 that.
- MS. JAMES: That's okay.
- 22 COMMISSIONER BELL: You asked a
- 23 question, you gave an answer and so we want to
- 24 try to close that question and answer out, but we
- 25 don't want to go back and forth.



- 1 MS. JAMES: Through the Chair I just
- 2 have one other thing to state. When this was
- 3 brought to me I did counsel the councilmember's
- 4 staff maybe having a conversation with that
- 5 business owner might help to help them try to fit
- 6 in and be a better corporate citizen.
- 7 There's not really anything legally
- 8 that we could do to stop them from calling it
- 9 that.
- 10 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you very
- 11 much. Obviously I'm against marijuana, but let
- 12 me ask you this.
- 13 My concern is -- my understanding that
- 14 came to me is that there's three or four cartels
- 15 that's going to run this city and that basically
- 16 when we started out with casinos a number of
- 17 years ago we had about 19 minorities in
- 18 ownership. We're down to like one.
- 19 What I'm really concerned about in
- 20 terms of the police department and the City, how
- 21 you're going to work with making sure that this
- 22 thing is run by people outside of the city,
- 23 outside of the state, because when you're talking
- about this kind of money, and you know we're
- 25 talking about money, you have not said about how



- 1 much money is going to come to the City and then
- 2 the State is talking about filling the potholes
- 3 up with it, I'm just saying I feel like -- I just
- 4 want to lay it to the record that I feel like
- 5 some credence ought to be given to the fact of
- 6 the possibility that this city will -- all
- 7 marijuana medical and recreational will be run by
- 8 cartels. This is what's happened in Arizona and
- 9 I do feel like as a police commissioner that we
- 10 ought to be sensitive with the City in
- 11 understanding the possibilities and that indeed
- 12 it will not be run by individual dispensers, but
- 13 most likely by cartels.
- Just basically just want to put in the
- 15 record, Mr. Chairman. I don't have to -- I know
- 16 she's got to go and I don't want to hold her up,
- 17 but I do feel like that should be a big concern
- 18 to this city and to the police department.
- 19 COMMISSIONER BELL: You can respond to
- 20 -- I don't know if it's a question or concern.
- MS. JAMES: I don't physically have
- 22 any. Appreciate the concern. I don't know that
- 23 that's true. I know that Councilmember Tate is
- 24 the sponsor of this ordinance and just as a
- 25 little bit of a pivot, but one of his main issues



- 1 was inclusion of Detroiters in this industry
- 2 because it's sort of the type of thing where you
- 3 need to have some expertise, you can't just start
- 4 to grow 1,500 plants.
- 5 So that's why we included it and we
- 6 were basically preempted by the State law from
- 7 making it only Detroiters or doing those types of
- 8 things, so what we did was included requirements
- 9 that they show their plan for hiring Detroiters,
- 10 will they do any community benefits such as
- 11 apprenticeship programs, training, teaching
- 12 people. Those are the applications that are
- 13 going to be looked upon favorably and also in the
- 14 application review process a criminal background
- 15 check will be had on every single person in the
- 16 ownership structure.
- 17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,
- 18 commissioners, we're going to close this sessions
- 19 out. Assistant corporation counsel, thank you
- 20 for coming before us. As you well know, this is
- 21 going to be an ongoing issue. The voting going
- 22 to take place in November and so therefore you
- 23 have the opportunity to impact and we will
- 24 probably ask for updates after November sometime
- 25 in December. Thank you once again.



- 1 MS. JAMES: Thank you so much.
- 2 (APPLAUSE.)
- 3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any standing or ad
- 4 hoc committee reports at this time. If not, we
- 5 will hear from the Board Secretary.
- 6 SECRETARY HICKS: Thank you,
- 7 Mr. Chair. I will be very brief. I simply want
- 8 to call your attention to the seven items that
- 9 are listed on the agenda.
- 10 When we list these items, we list them
- 11 as incoming communications to our office. The
- 12 ones of substantial note is that we did receive
- 13 two requests to change duty status for two police
- 14 officers and we have scheduled a closed session
- 15 for October 18, so that will be in your next
- 16 meeting. Please organize your time to
- 17 participate in the closed session.
- 18 The information supporting that which
- 19 is the summary that was provided by the
- 20 department has already been provided to the Board
- 21 by e-mail.
- 22 And the other item is, of course, we
- 23 have been asked by the Internal Affairs for the
- 24 use of our subpoena. We did utilize the subpoena
- 25 which has been customary in assistant the



- 1 department in conducting its internal
- 2 investigations.
- 3 And then the last item that is of a
- 4 particular note is that we did receive
- 5 information from the Michigan Towers Association
- 6 and this is consistent with their objection to
- 7 the new towing configuration.
- 8 With that, unless you have any
- 9 particular questions, that would by my report for
- 10 this evening.
- 11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, any
- 12 questions or concerns to Mr. Hicks. If not,
- 13 thank you.
- 14 The next item of business would be any
- 15 old business, Commissioners? If not, I want to
- 16 share with the audience that -- as you well know,
- on September 30 through October 4 we had an
- 18 opportunity to attend the annual conference of
- 19 the National Association of Civilian Oversight in
- 20 Law Enforcement in St. Petersburg, Florida, and
- 21 we set in motion a year ago to seek a seat on the
- 22 board and we was able to gain that seat by the
- 23 election of your Chair, Willie Bell, through the
- 24 efforts of the team of the commissioners and the
- 25 staff to really go all out to gain that seat.



- 1 It's a three-year term and I think Ms. Blossom
- 2 did a press release on it and I just wanted to
- 3 thank my commissioners, the ones that were in
- 4 attendance and not in attendance for their
- 5 support and the staff in terms of the efforts
- 6 that we rendered at that conference.
- We're looking forward to hosting the
- 8 January meeting at sometime in January the
- 9 national board will be coming here, it's an
- 10 11-person board. As we move forward to hosting
- 11 the conference in September 22 of 2019 and we
- 12 looking forward to your involvement in terms of
- 13 volunteering and etc.
- So we're working on that now, so keep
- 15 that in mind on that target as we share that
- 16 information with NACOLE in terms of that type of
- 17 effort.
- 18 The thank the commissioners and thank
- 19 the -- give them a round of applause. They did
- 20 an outstanding job.
- 21 (APPLAUSE.)
- 22 COMMISSIONER BELL: One of the
- 23 highlights, we had an opportunity to spearhead a
- 24 workshop with our immediate past Chair, Lisa
- 25 Carter and our Deputy Chief Todd Bettison to host



- 1 one of the first workshops n behalf of the
- 2 Detroit Chapter of the BOPC. It was outstanding
- 3 and I just really appreciate Ms. Blossom and
- 4 Ms. White's work in terms of -- and definite it
- 5 was outstanding workshop. I'm really proud.
- 6 Maybe we can share some of that video of that
- 7 workshop in the future in one of our meeting.
- 8 It was outstanding, thank you, and
- 9 we'll be reporting out on the conference itself
- 10 sometime in the next couple of meetings.
- 11 If we move on to new business and new
- 12 business, any new business. I just want to make
- 13 an announcement, you probably been following this
- 14 in Chicago. There was a historic decision made
- 15 by the Chicago jury of a police officer that was
- in the line of duty he shot and killed Lewon
- 17 McDonald and they came down with a verdict on
- 18 October 5, first time in the half century that an
- 19 on-duty officer was found quilty of committing
- 20 this particular act, so I think that the criminal
- 21 justice system worked for all those involved in
- 22 terms of issues of the system, so I wanted to
- 23 highlight that.
- 24 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Mr. Chair,
- 25 could I just make one quick comment. We have



- 1 offices in Chicago and on that day all of our
- 2 staff were required to leave at 1 o'clock because
- 3 there was fear that there was going to be a lot
- 4 of -- I don't even want to use the word, but
- 5 disruption in the community. Everybody was like
- on edge and so everybody was contacted to let
- 7 their staff go earlier, so thank goodness for the
- 8 outcome.
- 9 COMMISSIONER BELL: The verdict came
- 10 down reflect the jury, so who have to live by
- 11 that, but I think a historic moment in terms of
- 12 the history of accountability.
- 13 As we move on if there is no other new
- 14 business, announcements. Our next meeting will
- be on Thursday, October 18, 2018, at 3 PM at
- 16 Public Safety Headquarters on Third Street.
- Our next community meeting will be on
- 18 Thursday, November 8, at 6:30 PM, 6th Precinct,
- 19 Second Grace United Methodist Church, 18700 Joy
- 20 Road, that's on the west side.
- We're going to move right into or oral
- 22 communications from the audience. I'm going to
- 23 ask you to give your name and Mr. Brown, he's
- 24 already got the cards, because we want to try to
- 25 stay on the time frame. You've been very patient



- 1 in terms of moving the agenda, so Mr. Brown.
- 2 MR. ROBERT BROWN: Mr. Chair, I have
- 3 three cards. First speaker will be Ms. Bernice
- 4 Smith followed by Mr. Calvin Brown and then
- 5 followed by Ms. Deata Wilcox.
- 6 MS. SMITH: Good evening to the
- 7 Commission and to you, Chief, glad to see you.
- 8 I'm going to be brief. What I'd like to say I
- 9 wrote it down so I won't take up too much time.
- 10 Detroit is in a crisis. Crime is engulfing our
- 11 city. We're on the rampage with unnecessary
- 12 killings, high-jacking, burglaries and you name
- 13 it and stealings.
- 14 Policemen -- this is something that
- 15 came up the other week -- two policemen broke
- 16 into a young man's home as most of you read in
- 17 the paper and on TV, they were looking for a
- 18 burglar and instead they handcuffed the young man
- 19 and took him to jail and it was for no reason.
- 20 They did not believe that the man told them that
- 21 he lived there and he was a resident. His mother
- 22 lived across the street from him.
- 23 And it was just something that was very
- 24 upsetting to me knowing that I have sons also and
- 25 it could have happened to my sons because they do



- 1 own property.
- In the meantime, a white officers, they
- 3 did take him to jail and did not believe him.
- 4 Then there was the rookie as most of you know
- 5 that assaulted the lady down in Greektown and two
- 6 gentlemen, they were trying to intervene and that
- 7 was at a -- that was intolerable because the
- 8 officer being a rookie and not being on the force
- 9 no more than about a couple of years and the two
- 10 gentlemen did not want to let their names be
- 11 known because they were fearful for their lives,
- 12 that was something else that come about.
- 13 And then in regards to the four days --
- 14 I'm not going to even mention that because that's
- 15 still being an investigation, but I want the
- 16 citizens to know that I do favor my police
- 17 department. I always try to defend them whenever
- 18 they do anything, but I'm getting to a point now
- 19 that we having some rookies that are doing wrong
- and they haven't even been on the force long
- 21 enough, then we have some police that have been
- 22 -- I'm going to sit down because I'm going to be
- 23 obedient because Brown, he will give me the sign
- 24 all the time, but anyway, what does it say for
- 25 the police department to change their attitude



- 1 towards that Detroit citizens. I'm gone.
- MR. ROBERT BROWN: Thank you. Mr.
- 3 Calvin Brown followed by Deata Wilcox.
- 4 MR. BROWN: Good evening, everyone. My
- 5 name is Calvin Brown, I represent the Children's
- 6 Center located on Alexandrine between Woodward
- 7 and Cass. Let my first say thank you so much to
- 8 the commissioners for allowing me this brief time
- 9 to speak. I will be very brief.
- 10 It does my heart good, it's been a long
- 11 day today, but I wanted to come to this meeting
- 12 and I'm so thankful that I did. It does my heart
- 13 very good to see how much community engagement is
- 14 coming from the Detroit Police Department and
- 15 how much preventative measures are being taken to
- 16 engage the community.
- I just want to briefly tell you about a
- 18 program that the Children's Center has for
- 19 engaging young people who are aging out of the
- 20 foster care system. About 14,000 young people
- 21 each year are in the foster care system in the
- 22 state of Michigan, about 1,000 of those young
- 23 people age out of the foster care system. 25
- 24 percent of them instantly become homeless the day
- 25 that they age out of the foster care system and



- 1 that number is ballooning to about 40 percent
- 2 after a year.
- 3 And as you can well imagine they get
- 4 into some things that they should not, and so
- 5 about 80 percent of those young men who are aging
- 6 out are engaged in criminal activities and about
- 7 60 percent of those young men are convicted.
- 8 So this program is a program that helps
- 9 young people live independently. Everything that
- 10 we do puts them on the path to independent living
- 11 and we turn those statistics around with about 85
- 12 percent of them graduating from high school, 83
- 13 percent of them living independently.
- We pay a \$300 a month stipend to people
- in the community who are willing to open up their
- 16 homes and help these young people out.
- 17 I'll stop there. If anybody is
- interested in the program, I have some flyers
- 19 here. It's something that cam be done that's
- 20 preventative and can decrease the crime in the
- 21 city of Detroit and help these young people out
- 22 at the same time. So if you know anybody who's
- 23 interested, please take a flier. Thank you.
- 24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Mr.
- 25 Brown. Commissioner Holley?



- 1 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: How are you
- 2 funded?
- 3 MR. BROWN: We are funded through the
- 4 State of Michigan as well as for private
- 5 donations. We have a Philanthropy Department
- 6 that raises about \$3 million a year to get into
- 7 the gaps that are not met by the State funds.
- 8 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I really admire
- 9 you for that.
- 10 COMMISSIONER BELL: And thank you, Mr.
- 11 Brown, and we can have more interaction with you
- 12 and sharing the information.
- MR. BROWN: Absolutely. If there are
- 14 any community groups who would like me to come
- 15 out and present, I'm available to present at any
- 16 community meeting. Please take some information
- 17 and let me come out and present.
- 18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.
- MR. ROBERT BROWN: Ms. Deata Wilcox,
- 20 that will be your last speaker.
- MS. WILCOX: Good evening,
- 22 commissioners, Detroiters. I'm Deata Wilcox and
- 23 I can appreciate the Chair recognizing that the
- 24 representative from the Law Department had some
- other obligations. The issue of marijuana,



- 1 however, is a very serious issue. We're looking
- 2 at the facts that because it is not recognized at
- 3 the federal level we at looking at a cash
- 4 business.
- 5 Criminals follow cash and we have a
- 6 very serious concern as it relates to the fact
- 7 that this is going to be for all practical
- 8 purposes a cash business.
- 9 In addition to that, we have our young
- 10 people who can't find work and if they are
- inebriated or if they smell anything like what
- 12 I've smelled relative to this new version of
- 13 marijuana, I'm an old person so when I was in
- 14 college marijuana didn't smell like what I'm
- 15 smelling now and it has a lingering effect, so
- 16 when we're talking about something as serious as
- 17 marijuana, when we're talking about the fact that
- 18 the federal government has the ability to use the
- 19 commerce clause to regulate everything that we do
- 20 down to salt on our tables, so we have a very
- 21 serious concern and I would like for this body to
- 22 take a particular interest in it because it's
- 23 going to affect our community in a very
- 24 monumental kind of way.
- I really came here to say that being a



- 1 candidate for office I had a bomb threat at my
- 2 house last week. Most of you have probably not
- 3 seen a Coleman cooler, it's a metal cooler. I
- 4 have seen them in museums, but there was one
- 5 sitting in my driveway and I ended up having to
- 6 call the Detroit Police Department and despite
- 7 the fact that I have in the 12th and my precinct
- 8 does not rise to the level of being magical, but
- 9 they are extremely professional and I just wanted
- 10 to thank them for coming out and engaging the
- 11 Bomb Squad and making certain that I was safe.
- I raise my voice objectively I believe
- on issues that are of concern to me and my
- 14 community and when our public officials do
- 15 something right, I want to stand on the side of
- 16 right and commend them, so I comment the 12th
- 17 Precinct for all that they did. Thank you so
- 18 much.
- 19 (APPLAUSE.)
- 20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.
- 21 MR. ROBERT BROWN: Mr. Chair, that was
- 22 your last speaker.
- 23 COMMISSIONER BROWN: The Commission is
- 24 addressing the issues concerning the problems of
- 25 rookies out of the academy. We have looked at



- 1 those numbers and the other thing that you
- 2 mentioned we are aware of and we're taking action
- 3 against them and that was included in our agenda,
- 4 so I just want you to know we are looking at the
- 5 issues concerning rookie officers when they're
- 6 coming out of the academy.
- 7 COMMISSIONER BELL: If there's no other
- 8 business before this body, okay, there are
- 9 refreshments and you have the opportunity take a
- 10 look at the facility here, the Hunt Street
- 11 Station after we adjourn and I just want to thank
- 12 you for your attendance. I think it's been a
- 13 good meeting. The issues that we raise is going
- 14 to be ongoing, but I want to close on this note.
- 15 You have the opportunity to vote on
- 16 November 6, so that is your right. I will hope
- 17 that you encourage yourself, your family, your
- 18 extended family and Detroiters to come out and
- 19 vote.
- 20 Things happening in the city of Detroit
- 21 because we do not participate in the political
- 22 process and we must hold not just the police
- 23 department, but we should be accountable to
- 24 ourselves and we as commissioners, but we should
- 25 be accountable as individuals of this community,



1	whether you live in Detroit or not. This is
2	Metropolitan Detroit.
3	So on that note, the Chair will
4	entertain a motion for adjournment.
5	COMMISSIONER BROWN: So moved.
6	MS. BURCH: Support.
7	COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly
8	moved. Those in favor, aye.
9	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
10	COMMISSIONER BELL: Motion passed.
11	(Proceedings concluded at
12	8:31 p.m.)
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



1	CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
2	
3	
4	STATE OF MICHIGAN)
5) SS
6	COUNTY OF WAYNE)
7	
8	I HEREBY CERTIFY that I reported
9	stenographically the foregoing proceedings at the
10	time and place hereinbefore set forth; that
11	thereafter the same was reduced to computer
12	transcription and that this is a full, true,
13	complete and correct transcription of said
14	proceedings.
15	
16	all coll
17	way !
18	DALE E. ROSE CSR-0087
19	Notary Public,
20	Wayne County, Michigan
21	
22	
23	My Commission expires: 7-15-24
24	



25

\$

\$3 92:6

\$300 91:14

\$1,000 48:10

3:15 9:10 36:6,10,12,19 38:21 39:24 50:22 87:2

1's 35:25 36:22,23

1,000 57:19 60:21 61:2 62:14, 17 63:2,3 69:15,19 74:12 76:20,21 90:22

1,500 57:20 82:4

1,804 33:4

43:17,18 44:1 47:5 53:12 57:7 72:14

57:5

1000 44:11

40:25

10:30 32:19

10th 4:13

11 3:2 25:5 40:12 44:4

11-person 85:10

42:13

11th 13:9 23:1 49:11

42:9

40:25

12th 94:7,16

23:25 33:3,5 76:15

44:7

14,000 90:20

14th 23:3

38:23 40:23 57:7 78:1

15-minute 17:24

44:11 53:7

42:14

44:3

17-year 46:23

17:5 23:14 41:2 42:20 83:15 87:15

87:19

4:16 6:5

80:17

4:24

39:7

5:5

23:5

22:23

23:10

48:16

2,062 33:4

2.5 71:13 72:5

7:6

20,000 20:23

20-minute 18:5

33:4

23:14

2008 55:1

32:23

20:18 49:10 50:4,18,23

50:18,23 54:8,13

50:13 55:6,9 77:6

5:6 32:22 33:3,12

3:2,16 12:9 17:8 32:23 33:13 43:15 87:15

2018-G 32:17

2019 85:11

42:15

32:22

22 40:21 85:11

23:10

32:18

33:7

22:23

33:7

31:7 67:24 68:6 90:23

40:20,21

12:9

42:17

38:24

17:4 23:24 39:25 40:7,12, 18,20,23 41:5 42:12

28-day 40:2,9,14,24 41:7

5:5

39:24 48:16 67:16 78:17 79:4 87:15

16:3 68:7 84:17

50:8 54:13 65:13,14 76:20

30th 43:24

31 43:15 53:24

31st 43:24

26:18

42:17

49:19

40:15

3:30 14:3

3rd 4:17 9:6 37:7

3:6 38:22 42:19 48:16 84:17

40 26:7 91:1

443 42:20

46 42:13

461 42:21

467 33:1

47 41:7

48 40:14

4:30 43:17,18

5

5 5:13,22 9:19 17:8 19:10 25:25 33:6,12 35:19 36:1,19 38:22 68:12 86:18

500 50:8 57:19

501(c)(3) 25:15

50s 8:14

52 41:7

5th 5:17 53:4

6

6 9:12 95:16

6,503 33:13

6,860 33:12

60 91:7

63 4:18

688 33:1

6:29 3:3

6:30 14:5 87:18

6th 87:18

7

7 9:4 14:8 17:24 32:21 36:1 43:17,18 44:1 46:14,24 50:3,7 51:1 52:6

70 54:20

71 39:8 42:16

75 70:13 72:17,18

76 39:8

7th 5:1 7:24 8:6,18 17:10,21 25:24 26:15,21 28:6,14 29:5 30:1,18 38:15 39:5,6,14,20 41:3,8,12 43:16,24 44:21 45:17 47:20 49:11,15,16 50:13,14,16 51:7 52:19

8

8 14:8 87:18

80 91:5

80s 8:13

83 91:12

85 91:11

8:31 96:12

9

9 47:5

9-1-1 36:18

90 57:1

Α

AARP 27:12

ability 77:15,16 93:18

absence 26:3

Absolutely 69:1 92:13

AC 15:24

academy 22:25 94:25 95:6

accept 15:23 20:1 26:3

acceptable 75:23

access 20:3 21:11,20 22:10

76:11

accident 67:2

accountability 87:12

accountable 95:23,25

accounting 26:9

accurate 35:4,10,14 63:24

achievement 29:10

acknowledge 19:9 28:3 44:15

50:2

acronym 74:20

act 55:8 56:8,11 71:17 86:20

action 19:6 32:6 95:2

actions 32:1

active 25:17 26:14

activist 24:5

activities 27:6 41:3,13 91:6

activity 54:3 62:15 69:17

actual 56:19 76:2

ad 83:3

add 28:12

added 5:5 59:19 64:24

addition 29:15 47:15 67:17

93:9

additional 13:25 17:5 40:1,13

address 5:15 17:23 22:18 72:8

78:11

addressing 35:11 39:24 94:24

adjourn 95:11

adjournment 96:4

administered 67:22

admire 92:8

adoption 30:8

adult 8:4

advance 63:24

advise 13:25

Advisory 75:10

advocacy 20:21

advocate 19:5

Affairs 83:23 affect 93:23 affects 75:14 affiliation 22:16

affordability 21:1

affordable 20:3

age 39:9 90:23,25

agency 14:19

agenda 8:17 11:25 83:9 88:1 95:3

ages 43:16,18

aggravated 33:11 40:11,13

aging 90:19 91:5

ahead 27:18

air 48:6

Akbar 10:23

Alex 6:10

Alexandrine 90:6

allocated 17:24 18:5 67:24 68:1

allowed 54:20 55:10,11 57:22 59:8,24 60:15 61:1,24,25 62:2,4,8,10 71:18,20 75:24 77:7

allowing 90:8

amend 16:20

Amendment 78:21

America 19:15

American 27:11

Americore 45:4

amount 68:6 71:19,23,24 73:16

ane 3:6

announcement 38:17 86:13

announcements 87:14

annual 27:4 44:5 84:18

Anytime 47:3

apartments 61:16

apologies 40:20

apologize 79:19

apology 53:5

Appeals 60:16 77:12

appears 32:10

applause 7:22 20:7,8 22:12 28:10 29:14 30:6 38:6 44:24 45:25 46:10,20 48:12,24 83:2 85:19,21 94:19

applicant 64:6 65:1,3,19 75:20

applicant's 65:8 applicants 57:21

application 54:1 63:16 65:21 82:14

applications 63:13,18 75:11 82:12

applies 74:11

apply 63:7 74:8,15

appointed 9:8,15 22:22

appreciation 17:16 19:21 20:2

appreciative 47:9

apprenticeship 82:11

approach 29:6 36:13

approached 6:12

approval 12:9 63:6 65:5

approve 11:25

approved 15:9 65:20 70:16,17

77:19

approx 3:3

arcades 63:4

architectural 4:21

area 33:16 35:24 37:18 41:18 51:15 73:18,19 74:24 76:9 77:8

areas 73:1 74:23

Arizona 81:8

arms 6:19

Arnold 35:7

arrests 33:8

arrived 25:19

artery 8:5

arthritis 59:20

Article 14:7

assault 40:11,13

assaulted 89:5

assaults 32:23 33:11

assigned 23:7

assist 32:11 41:12

assistance 45:7

assistant 18:3 52:22 53:17

82:19 83:25

associate's 26:9

Association 26:25 27:1,11

84:5,19

assume 25:19

ast 27:5

Athletic 23:12

attend 32:17 84:18

attendance 3:9 11:10,23 13:7

85:4 95:12

attended 26:12

attending 10:22

attention 10:11 83:8

attest 30:16

attitude 89:25

attorney 10:16 61:8

Atwater 42:3

audience 5:15 66:6 68:19 69:22 84:16 87:22

audio-visual 10:7

auditing 14:17

August 23:10

authority 78:14

authorized 55:19

availability 45:8

Avenue 8:5 44:11

award 20:15 29:4,7 44:16,18, 22 45:10,21 46:12,15,16

awards 19:25 24:11 29:2

aware 59:4 79:8 95:2

aye 12:6,15,16 24:25 25:1 30:13,14 96:8,9

В

B1 61:18

B2 62:4

B4 62:4

B5 62:4,10

B6 61:19 62:3,4,10

back 3:12 4:5 6:16 7:21 11:19 12:18 16:4 18:10 21:20 22:2 25:25 37:19 39:7,17 44:17 49:6 50:20 52:2 54:6 55:1 56:6 58:9 79:17,25

background 8:2 49:12 82:14

backlash 33:24 34:8,10

bad 47:3 75:24

Bailer 25:20

Bailey 17:10,11,12 18:19,20 26:5,6,14,22 27:6,14 28:5,13 29:10,18 30:9

Bailey's 30:17

balance 51:2

Baldwin 8:13

ballooning 91:1

ballot 55:23

ballrooming 50:9

Balogen 43:9

ban 79:7

banking 59:6

banks 59:9

barcode 57:2

Barren 11:12,15,16 28:25 29:15 30:5 31:3,21 33:23 34:4,16 35:3,22 37:1,4,6,9

Basic 58:6

basically 55:5,24 61:7 65:22 72:10 73:24 75:21 80:15 81:14 82:6

basketball 51:24 52:1,11

beans 28:22,23

bearer 3:24

beat 42:2,3

beauty 4:22

began 5:9 22:25

beginning 18:13

behalf 3:8,20 13:18 19:24 48:22 55:25 86:1

behavioral 69:3,10

Bell 3:4,5 5:21 7:23 8:24 9:24 11:8,22 12:4,7,13,17 13:2,6, 10,14 22:13 24:18,23 25:2,18 30:11,15 33:20 35:15 37:2 38:7 39:11 49:2,20 52:13,17 66:1 68:17 69:21 70:25 79:16, 22 81:19 82:17 83:3 84:11,23 85:22 87:9 91:24 92:10,18 94:20 95:7 96:7,10

Belle 4:20

Belligen 6:13

Belogin 51:11

Ben 8:8,9

benefit 67:3

benefits 64:25 66:24 68:15

82:10

Benny 23:18

Benson 79:9

Bernice 88:3

Bettison 34:6,18 85:25

beverages 57:14

bicycle 42:4

big 31:13 48:20 81:17

bill 3:15,22 69:24 70:6

Bingo 44:2

birth 50:17

bit 8:12 11:2 12:18 46:22

81:25

blackest 19:14

bless 45:22

blessings 45:12

blight 76:12

block 17:25 18:5

blocks 76:17

Blossom 10:14 85:1 86:3

board 3:6,8,20 4:13 9:20,25 10:1,16 13:18,21 14:2,8,25 15:2,9,12,14,18,25 16:4,10 17:23 19:21,24 22:19 24:9 28:1,8 33:18 60:15 71:13 77:12 83:5,20 84:22 85:9,10

Board's 15:13

body 29:2 38:19 93:21 95:8

bomb 94:1,11

Bonny 38:19

BOPC 14:16 86:2

border 41:12

born 9:14

boss 23:17

Boulevard 38:24

boy 52:3,9

break-in 43:1

Bridget 33:14

briefly 90:17

Brigade 20:18

bring 27:23

bringing 15:14 33:15 51:2

broke 88:15

Brooks 3:13,14,19,22 4:3 9:7,

8

Brooks' 3:14

brother 6:6 7:5

brothers 48:20

brought 49:11 56:8 79:8 80:3

Brown 9:9,10 10:11 13:4 18:10 22:16,19 24:19 25:8 28:21 68:21 69:3,10 87:23 88:1,2,4 89:23 90:2,3,4,5 91:25 92:3,11,13,19 94:21,23 96:5

brownies 57:13

building 5:8 6:4 7:17 39:15 50:15 63:18 65:10 78:15

bunch 47:19 63:17

Burch 9:5,6 37:5 38:8 60:24 77:22 78:9,12 79:12,19 96:6

Burden 5:13,22

Bureau 23:4,6

burglar 88:18

burglaries 88:12

burglary 23:9 40:17,19 41:15

42:15,24

Burton 5:14,16 9:18,19 17:17 18:19,22,23 20:9 22:14 25:21, 23 28:11,23 30:20 35:17 36:7, 25:24 4.45 70:22

8 50:1 52:14,15 78:23

business 12:8 22:15 26:25 30:23 52:19 61:18 62:8 64:17 65:16 75:20 80:5 84:14.15

86:11,12 87:14 93:4,8 95:8

businesses 26:20 42:25 59:5

busy 29:25

buy 48:4 58:18 73:19

buyer 58:17

buying 72:5,12 73:10

buys 70:22

C

cable 3:10

calendar 4:14

call 19:1 21:16 36:11 38:14 44:17 47:5 48:16 51:9 79:3 83:8 94:6

called 21:13 51:16 55:7,14,15 56:22,25 60:19 64:14 71:4,5 78:16

calling 6:16 80:8

calls 36:14,18,24 48:18 55:17

Calvin 12:25 13:4 68:21 88:4 90:3,5

cam 91:19

Campau 42:3

cancer 58:13 59:17 73:17

candidate 94:1

cannabis 59:4,9,24 70:9

cap 72:18

capacity 12:23

capital 78:25

capsules 57:14

Capt 17:22 39:19,21,22 44:25 48:13,25 49:8,19,25 50:6,18

51:1,10

Captain 29:5 43:4

Captain's 43:6

car 71:19

card 18:9,11,12

cards 18:9 87:24 88:3

care 21:11 47:8,21 90:20,21,

23,25

career 8:6 22:25 39:7

caregiver 55:3

caregivers 55:3

Carjackings 33:6

Carol 17:22

carries 12:8,18 25:2 30:16

carry 7:18

cartels 80:14 81:8,13

Carter 9:11,12 12:12 16:14 24:22 30:7,25 33:22 34:11,22

85:25

case 60:16 64:8

cases 14:17 15:14,25

cash 59:5,10 67:8 93:3,5,8

Casino 4:20

casinos 80:16

Cass 90:7

categories 40:6 42:9

category 40:11,17,22 42:10,

15

catfish 28:24

Cease 42:1

cells 7:21

center 13:5 55:18 61:4 63:5 67:16 68:22 69:2,16 72:25 90:6,18

centers 55:16 59:12 60:22 62:3,15,16 69:16,17,25 70:13, 14 71:6 74:7,13 76:16 77:19

century 86:18

certificate 17:15 18:21,24

19:20,22,25

certificates 17:1

Chair 3:6 10:2 11:24 24:19 30:7 31:4 34:5,19 37:5 38:1 50:2 66:20 77:22 80:1 83:7 84:23 85:24 86:24 88:2 92:23 94:21 96:3

certification 26:13

Chairman 5:17 18:23 66:2 81:15

change 15:13 72:22 83:13 89:25

channel 3:11

chaplain 8:18,19,20

Chapter 14:8 27:11 86:2

Charles 3:14 17:22

Charter 14:7

check 47:13 82:15

chemicals 64:22

Chene 4:25 49:19.20

Chicago 86:14,15 87:1

Chief 10:19,20,21 11:12,15, 16,24 13:12,24 15:5,11 19:23 28:25 29:15 30:5 31:2,3,21 33:21,22 34:4,16,23 35:3,4, 10,16,22 37:1,4,10 38:1,18,25 85:25 88:7

childcare 62:15 69:16

children 21:10 31:18 37:18 68:25 69:7,11

children's 13:5 68:22 69:2,7 72:25 90:5,18

chime 35:23 36:2

chronic 59:18

church 38:23 61:2 63:1 64:4 87:19

churches 60:24,25 62:20

cigarettes 70:24

cities 19:14 55:19

citizen 13:21 14:13,18 15:3 80:6

'.'--- 40 0

citizens 14:11,15 20:23 23:23, 24 24:6,10,17 27:7,18 28:2,7 29:9 35:18 42:25 89:16 90:1

city 4:22 14:6,7 19:17 20:5,17 24:16 26:7 28:2,7 29:1,22 34:3,9 37:16 45:19 53:18,21, 23 54:5,6,7,20,25 55:22 56:1, 6 60:3,7,14,19 63:10,18,19 67:4,9 68:3,15 72:21 73:5 80:15,20,22 81:1,6,10,18 88:11 91:21 95:20

city's 58:2 64:8,12

Citywide 13:1,3

civil 14:14

civilian 14:9,12 15:1 84:19

civilians 46:6 49:5

clarity 32:14

Class 32:17 57:19,21,24

classified 69:14,18

clause 93:19

clean 20:3

clinic 78:16 79:4

clone 56:24

close 33:10 73:20 78:2 79:24

82:18 95:14

closed 4:23 83:14,17

closely 25:10,13

closer 27:24

closest 10:14

cluster 77:7,15

co-exist 70:19

co-founders 6:2

co-working 7:4,10

coffee 43:5 44:9

Coleman 94:3

collect 63:23 67:18,20

collectively 22:4

college 26:11 48:5 93:14

Colter 10:24

comfort 77:18

Comm 11:19 17:22 29:17 35:7 36:4,9 39:4,9,13 43:5 44:10 46:11,21 50:25

Commander 29:5,16 35:23 36:2 38:2,14 44:17,19 48:15 49:16

commanding 49:9

commend 7:23 94:16

comment 16:22 37:6 49:3 86:25 94:16

commentary 35:5

comments 16:23 18:13 35:16 49:3

commerce 93:19

commercial 55:10

commission 66:3 88:7 94:23

Commission, planning 63:20

commissioner 3:4,5,13,19 5:12,14,16,21,22 6:4 7:23 8:24 9:3,5,7,9,10,11,13,16,18, 19,22,24 11:8,22 12:2,3,4,7, 11,12,13,17 13:2,6,10,14 16:14 17:16 18:18,21,23 20:9 22:13,14,19 24:18,19,21,22, 23 25:2,8,18,21,23 28:11,21, 23 30:7,10,11,15,20,25 33:20, 22 34:11,22,23 35:13,15,17 36:7,8 37:2,5 38:7,8 39:11 49:2,20 50:1,4 52:13,14,15,17 53:10 60:24 65:25 66:1,20 68:17,18 69:21 70:25 71:2,8 72:16,23 73:9 74:5,14,18 75:2,9 76:14,22 77:20,22 78:9,12,23 79:12,16,17,19,22 80:10 81:9,19 82:17 83:3 84:11 85:22 86:24 87:9 91:24, 25 92:1,8,10,18 94:20,23 95:7 96:5,7,10

commissioners 5:19 6:25 8:25 9:6,21 11:24 12:6,16

14:2,8,25 19:22,25 20:15 24:9 25:1 28:1,9 30:14 49:2,10 53:1 66:9,10 82:18 84:11,15, 24 85:3,18 90:8 92:22 95:24 96:9

commitment 24:1,16 25:6 28:5 29:23

committee 63:12 64:13,15 65:4,8 75:10,16 83:4

committing 86:19

common 22:3

communications 18:8 83:11 87:22

communities 23:25

community 3:23 4:13 5:19 6:10,22 7:3,13,17 12:22,24 14:5,13,22 17:12 19:4,8,12 20:19 24:5 25:14,16,24 26:10, 15,16 27:15,21,22,24 28:6,14 29:21 30:19 38:3,11 44:5 49:12 50:5,17,24 51:3,19,21 64:25 75:12,14,23 82:10 87:5, 17 90:13,16 91:15 92:14,16 93:23 94:14 95:25

company 7:5 20:4 27:13

compared 32:22 33:1,7,13 36:6 40:1,8,14,19,20,21,24 41:6

compassion 45:16

compelled 45:21

complaints 14:18 15:4 41:21

complete 46:1 65:7

compliance 55:14 56:17 58:6 62:7

comprehensive 64:17

computer 46:25 47:2 48:5,7,9, 10

computers 47:16,21

conceivably 57:23

concept 76:3

concern 13:19,20 15:15 37:6 38:9 72:3 80:13 81:17,20,22 93:6.21 94:13

concerned 80:19

concerns 33:21 35:8 37:3 72:7 84:12

conclude 34:17 48:25

concluded 96:11

concludes 33:19

condition 59:18

conditional 75:17,19 76:4,5

conditions 59:17,21 75:22,25

conducting 3:7 84:1

conference 3:17 31:11,12 84:18 85:6,11 86:9

confident 32:9

configuration 11:1 15:23 84:7

confirm 30:20

congratulations 20:10

Conservancy 27:4

considered 36:10,22 63:1

75:21

consistent 32:2 40:7 84:6

consists 11:18

Conspiracy 23:13

Constance 17:10 26:5,6,22

28:4 29:9 30:9

constantly 27:17

constituents 19:24

consultation 20:21

consulted 20:25

consulting 7:7

consumer 57:10

consummate 24:7

contacted 87:6

contaminants 58:11

continually 45:22

continue 4:8 5:19 6:5 29:3

65:20

continued 23:16 45:15

continues 13:21

continuing 25:16

contradictions 59:7

contributing 27:23

contribution 4:1

control 14:10

controlled-use 61:3

controversial 60:11

convened 49:9

conversation 34:5 80:4

convicted 91:7

convinced 48:9

cool 6:1,11 26:3

cooler 94:3

cooperation 29:20 46:4

cop 43:5 44:10

copies 16:18

copy 16:15

Corbitt 43:10

core 37:9

cornbread 28:24

Corner 43:6

Cornwell 10:25

corporate 3:23 80:6

corporation 18:3,4 52:22

53:17 82:19

corporatize 22:1

Corps 8:20

correct 71:7 79:13

Corridor 42:3

Council 17:13 26:16 29:1



53:23 56:6 72:21

councilmember 77:3 79:9 81:23

01.23

councilmember's 80:3

councilmembers 29:13

counsel 18:3,4 52:23 53:17

80:3 82:19

count 57:6 77:25

counties 68:7,12

countries 22:8

country 22:7

County 17:5,7 22:17 23:18,25

24:3 26:10 31:8 68:9

couple 31:18 86:10 89:9

court 10:8 56:2 64:7

cover 33:17 66:22

Cpl 41:20 43:11

Craig 11:12 31:2 37:10

created 55:3

Creator 45:14

credence 81:5

credit 24:2

Creole 26:18

crime 32:20 39:23 41:24 43:1

50:23 88:10 91:20

Crimes 23:3,7

criminal 32:4 82:14 86:20 91:6

Criminals 93:5

crisis 88:10

critical 14:22

Crystal 44:23 45:3

CSC 39:24 40:1

current 35:20 42:7

Curtis 22:20

cushions 37:17,20

custodian 26:24

custom 41:22

customary 83:25

Cut 42:4

CVS 70:7,8,21

D

daily 19:16 27:7 71:10,11,13,

15,24

Dale 10:8

Dallas 38:18

dangerous 58:13 73:18

dark 44:8

Darryl 22:16

date 32:22 34:10 41:1

dates 43:23

daughter 28:13

Davis 9:3,4 12:2,11 24:21

34:23 35:13

day 21:2,3 31:12 52:4 53:8

72:5 87:1 90:11,24

daycare 60:22 69:16 74:13

days 16:3 35:1 39:25 40:7,12, 18,20,23 41:5 42:23 89:13

DC 34:5,18 37:6,9

deadline 45:2

deal 36:13

dear 38:9 39:6 49:17

Deata 88:5 90:3 92:19,22

death 31:9,13

decades 24:13

December 82:25

decides 72:21

decision 7:25 64:12 86:14

decrease 32:21 33:5 91:20

decreases 33:9

dedicated 24:13 68:14

dedication 24:2 28:5 29:11

45:16

defend 64:11 89:17

defined 61:11

defines 60:2

definite 86:4

degree 26:9

Del 43:10

delay 35:8,9

delivery 20:21

Demeeko 17:17 19:2,3,11,19,

23 20:1,6

demonstrate 29:22

denied 64:6

Denmark 43:9

deny 21:7

DEP 11:15 28:25 29:15 30:5

31:3,21 34:4,16 35:3,22 37:1

department 4:18,24 6:17

13:22 14:10 15:2,5,16,19,21

16:4,7,9,13,23 17:4,7 21:15

20.47 22 22.46 20 22 24.2 4

22:17,23 23:16,20,23 24:3,4,

11 28:3 29:2 31:7,8,17 32:2,5,

16 36:11 46:5,24 53:18 63:19

65:10 80:20 81:18 83:20 84:1

89:17,25 90:14 92:5,24 94:6

95:23

depicted 54:18

deployed 42:23

deployment 41:14

deposited 59:10

Deputy 11:11,15 13:24 17:7

31:2 33:21,22 34:23 35:16

37:4 38:25 85:25

Dequindre 37:11 42:4

designed 4:19,20

desk 7:11

determine 57:8

detrimental 75:21

Detroit 3:1,18 4:1,17 9:20 14:7,24 15:2 19:13,17,24 20:5,18 21:14 22:23 23:15,23, 24 24:3,9,10,16 26:7,23 27:1, 11 28:1,2,3,7,8 29:1,3,7,9,22 30:24 31:6,16 32:15 33:23 34:3 37:16 44:21,22 45:11,19 46:4,23 53:18,22 54:6,21 60:3 68:16 73:11 78:8 86:2 88:10 90:1,14 91:21 94:6 95:20 96:1,2

Detroit's 5:7 54:15

Detroiters 20:2,22 64:20 82:1, 7,9 92:22 95:18

Detroiters' 19:15

develop 72:2

developing 22:8 73:14

development 63:20 76:7

device 37:11 57:6

devices 57:2,3

Dewaelsche 9:13,14 12:3 30:10 66:20 68:18 71:1,2,8 72:16,23 73:9 74:5,14,18 75:2,9 76:14,22 77:20 86:24

difference 36:10

difficult 3:17 4:7 64:7

difficulty 59:6

digit 42:7,8

diligence 38:12

diligent 24:13

dire 36:25

directed 15:15 41:15

direction 32:10

directives 16:19

director 13:13 19:23

dirty 34:9

discriminatory 14:20

discussed 32:24

discussion 12:14 15:20 24:24

30:12

Dispatch 36:21,24

dispensaries 54:13,17 56:13 59:13 67:14 70:1 77:6

dispensary 55:16 59:1 67:9 72:4

dispensers 81:12

displayed 45:16

disposal 64:19

disruption 87:5

distance 73:2

Distinguished 44:22

distribute 71:4

district 3:6 5:13,14,18,22 9:4, 6,10,12,19 10:25 19:10 25:25 35:19 37:7 50:21 53:4 60:2 61:11,14,17 62:6 78:15,17 79:4

districts 61:7,9,20,23 62:1,8,9 77:6.11

disturbs 78:13

Division 11:18

DNA 41:16

doctor 59:22

document 47:24

documentation 64:3.4

documents 64:9

donations 92:5

door 76:18 78:3

doors 4:16

double 42:7

Doug 8:19

DPD 8:20 11:13,21 54:15 63:19

DPW 63:20

drafting 15:21

Drake 13:13

drive 37:24 55:13

driveway 94:5

driving 8:2

drug-free 60:20,21 61:1 62:13

74:12

due 38:12 41:2 54:14

Duncan 43:10

dutifully 23:2

duty 83:13 86:16

Ε

e-mail 83:21

earlier 72:24 87:7

early 5:6 8:14 69:23 70:3

earned 26:9

east 11:17 38:24 41:19

Eastern 41:18

economic 76:9

edge 87:6

edibles 57:13

educational 7:6

Edward 4:19

effect 53:25 93:15

effective 53:24

effort 85:17

efforts 27:23 30:17,18 84:24

85:5

elected 9:20 12:20,21

election 84:23

electronic 37:11 56:15

Elementary 37:23

eliminate 14:19

Elizabeth 3:13 9:8

Elvin 11:16

embedded 41:19

embodiment 45:17

emergency 20:20

empowered 14:9

enabling 45:12

encounter 4:11

encourage 95:17

encouragement 45:15

end 18:7 39:16 50:20 51:23

53:6 64:25

endanger 76:8

endeavors 45:23

ended 56:1 77:9 94:5

endowed 45:13

energy 45:9

enforcement 14:12 23:17 41:11,21 52:9 56:10,18 84:20

engage 15:20 90:16

engaged 91:6

engagement 90:13

engaging 90:19 94:10

engulfing 88:10

enjoy 45:12

ensure 32:5 36:25

entertain 11:25 24:19 66:5,15

96:4

entire 57:10

entrusted 5:4

equipment 64:23

essential 21:6

established 70:1

esteem 29:9

estimated 64:21

Eva 9:14

evening 3:4 9:5,7,9,11,13 10:9,20 12:22 13:15 52:25

53:1 84:10 88:6 90:4 92:21

evening's 12:1

event 36:13

event-driven 41:3,13

events 27:15 43:13

exact 75:1

excellent 49:4 76:24

exceptional 29:10

excise 67:17,22

excited 6:15,20 12:19 58:20

executive 11:6 23:20

exemplary 20:4

exempt 62:19,21 64:5

existing 16:15

exists 15:1

experience 4:11

experienced 39:25 40:12,15, 18,23 41:1,5 42:19 43:1

expert 47:2

expertise 82:3

express 13:19

expression 29:8

extended 4:6 95:18

extent 68:15

extremely 94:9

F

facilities 55:8,15,20 56:5,20 58:6,23 60:4 61:24,25 62:2,7, 10 65:6 68:2,4,8,10,23,24

69:7,15,19 70:5 71:3 74:11

facility 56:11 59:25 60:8,20 63:7,8 64:14 67:25 76:11 95:10

fact 31:10 35:4 81:5 93:6,17

94:7

factor 64:24

facts 93:2

Fair 37:12

fall 44:5

fallen 13:19 14:1

familiar 69:2 77:23

families 19:4,13 21:10 42:1

68:25

family 3:19 4:3,6,8 25:3,6

31:18 38:20 39:3 40:5 61:15

95:17,18

faster 57:1

father 3:24

fault 22:5

favor 12:5,14 24:24 30:12

89:16 96:8

favorably 82:13

FBI 23:8

fear 87:3

fearful 89:11

February 5:5 23:14

federal 59:8 70:20 93:3,18

federally 70:22

feeding 27:16 30:2

feel 54:22 65:16 73:20 81:3,4,

9,17

feet 57:7 60:21 61:2 62:14,17 63:2,3 65:13,14 69:16,19

74:12 76:20,21

fellow 27:18 47:19

Fenlawn 37:22

fest 44:6

Festival 27:5 43:14

fewer 40:18,23 41:5 42:13,17,

20

Fields 44:23 46:1

fight 22:5,6

fighting 79:3

figure 59:13

filling 43:12 81:2

filter 66:17

final 76:15

finally 21:19 44:9

find 47:1 93:10

finding 76:3

finest 54:15

finger 52:2

finished 53:9

Fire 42:1 63:20

fiscal 10:13

fish 62:22

Fishing 27:5

fit 80:5

flaq 72:12

flat 42:3

flier 91:23

floor 7:5,9 64:16

Florida 31:10,14 84:20

flow 40:8

flyers 91:18

focused 38:13

folks 51:12

follow 93:5

food 30:25

Foods 75:8

force 14:21 23:8 89:8,20

forefront 14:16

forgot 28:21

form 13:22

forward 8:17,22 13:16 19:2 25:22 33:10 49:15 60:17

64:10 76:1 85:7,10,12

foster 90:20,21,23,25

fought 56:1

found 47:1 63:25 86:19

founded 7:6

four-day 35:9

four-hour 35:8

frame 36:1 66:15 87:25

Fred 46:17,19,21 47:2 48:14

friends 79:2

front 10:14 11:4 54:4 64:9

fry 62:22

fun 43:20

fund 67:22,23

funded 92:2.3

funds 92:7

funeral 38:22

funeralized 25:4

future 41:25 86:7

G

gain 84:22,25

Gang 41:9

gangs 23:9

gap 45:5 48:22

gaps 92:7

Garden 43:19

Garza 9:14

Garzia 18:5

gave 79:23

geek 48:8

gels 75:19

generosity 28:4

gentlemen 89:6,10

give 8:1 18:16 20:6 46:15,17 48:21 58:9 85:19 87:23 89:23

giving 20:14 28:4 49:6

glad 49:17 88:7

glory 5:11

God 21:18

God's 45:22

good 3:4 9:5,7,9,11,13 10:20 13:11,14,15 26:19 28:16,19

29:16 33:8 38:4 39:11 52:25 53:1 88:6 90:4,10,13 92:21

95:13

goodness 47:17 87:7

goof 28:20

government 3:10 66:24 93:18

grabbed 52:1

grace 25:4 45:11,20,21,22

87:19

graduated 26:8

graduating 22:24 91:12

graduation 32:15,16

grand 38:24 50:13

grandfather 3:24

Grass 44:6

grateful 48:21

Gratiot 5:1 8:4,6 26:25 77:25

gratitude 29:8

great 68:6

Greater 25:4

Greektown 89:5

green 35:21,22 36:5,22 43:2

44:12



Gregory 9:25

Groesbeck 78:7

ground-breaking 3:21

group 20:19 25:17 36:23 72:1

groups 92:14

grow 55:4 57:4 82:4

grower 57:17 61:24

growers 55:12 56:13 57:18

74:9,15

growing 57:24,25 58:24

grown 56:23 58:4,7

guess 6:3 13:16 35:18 48:7

68:3

guidelines 15:21

guilty 86:19

gumbo 26:18,19 28:16,19,20

gun 32:13

gun-type 57:2

Н

half 15:24 35:1 86:18

Hall 38:18,19

Halloween 30:3 43:17

halls 63:4

hand 51:24 52:12

handcuffed 88:18

handle 34:6

handled 17:16

handling 41:20

handout 66:11

hands 45:24 52:2

happen 70:24

happened 32:25 62:23 81:8

88:25

happening 51:14 95:20

happy 48:11

hard 20:10,11 34:15

hardening 43:1

hardship 15:14,22,25

Harvest 43:14

Haunted 43:19

head 23:19 32:13

Headquarters 23:4,6,11 87:16

health 63:19 69:3,8,10 76:10

hear 5:8,23 18:17 19:16 21:17

52:8 66:8 83:5

heard 15:25 50:5 51:17

hearing 3:10 60:5 64:2 65:10, 11,16 75:17,19,25 76:4

hearings 60:7,9 63:25

 $\textbf{heart} \ \ 38:9 \ 39:7 \ \ 44:4 \ \ 47:17,22$

49:17 90:10,12

hearts 3:17

held 43:15 44:11 60:7

helping 19:4,12 20:2

helps 91:8

herewith 29:8

hero 46:16 48:14,23

hey 6:17

hiccups 46:25

Hicks 8:1 9:25 10:2 11:1,9

34:20 66:16 83:6 84:12

high 26:8 27:16 91:12

high-jacking 88:12

higher 22:2 61:12,19

highest 24:17 28:8

highlight 86:23

highlights 85:23

highly 24:6

hiring 64:20 82:9

historic 4:9 5:6,9 86:14 87:11

history 8:2,7,10,12 17:6 64:21

76:12 87:12

history-making 8:15

HIV 59:18

hoc 83:4

hold 18:11,13 66:1,12 81:16

95:22

holds 27:1

Holley 9:16,22 80:10 91:25

92:1,8

home 8:8,9 27:9 88:16

homeless 90:24

homes 51:10 61:15 91:16

Homicide 41:9

homicides 32:21 42:9

honorable 29:2 72:21

honored 20:16 46:2

honoring 22:20 26:4 30:9

honors 17:1

hook 48:8

Hoover 78:5

hope 8:16 17:22 18:14 35:13 39:16,19,21,22 44:25 48:13,

25 49:9,19,25 50:6,18 51:1,10

95:16

hoping 16:21

hospitality 7:1

host 85:25

hosting 6:23 85:7,10

hot 77:23

hour 38:20

house 65:18 73:21 94:2

housing 60:23 62:16

huge 54:15 59:11 72:3

human 21:5,6

humbled 46:2

Hunt 4:10,15,24 5:10,25 6:2, 20 7:20 95:10

husband 3:14

Hydrate 19:23

Hydrick 13:13

ı

idea 67:9

ideas 27:22

identified 62:19

identify 66:7 78:19

identifying 78:24

illegal 54:13,23

imagine 21:2,3 59:11 91:3

immediately 6:16 10:10

impact 15:12 31:13 64:19

75:11,13 82:23

impacts 76:10

impede 76:6

implementation 16:5

important 49:22 56:9 60:23

75:15

impose 73:23

imposed 67:15

impressed 46:3

improve 46:6

improving 29:12

incident 31:24 40:1,16

incidents 40:4,13,19,23 41:6

42:13,17,20

include 43:3

included 41:9 82:5,8 95:3

includes 60:21 64:18

including 76:10

inclusion 82:1

income 64:20 67:7,8

incoming 83:11

inconvenience 21:5

increase 32:24,25 41:2

increased 41:17

increasing 14:23

independent 91:10

independently 91:9,13

individual 14:17 32:12 81:12

individuals 8:11 41:24 95:25

industrial 61:20,25 62:9 73:18

industry 82:1

inebriated 93:11

information 13:25 16:17 34:24 35:12 63:24 83:18 84:5 85:16

92:12,16

informed 16:10

injured 13:20,23 14:1 33:16

Inspector's 63:21

inspired 52:9

instantly 90:24

institution 62:19

institutions 62:18

integrity 24:2,15 45:16

Intelligence 41:10

intend 65:1

intense 61:13,19,21

intensity 61:19

interacted 8:20

interaction 92:11

interest 93:22

interested 27:20 91:18,23

interior 64:17

internal 32:4 83:23 84:1

intervene 32:11 89:6

intolerable 89:7

introduce 8:25 10:1 11:13,20

12:23 43:8

introduces 10:18 11:21

introduction 10:5

INV 10:20

inventory 56:18 57:3

investigate 15:3

investigating 14:16

investigation 31:25 89:15

investigations 84:2

 $\textbf{Investigator} \ \ 10{:}19{,}21{,}23{,}24{,}$

25

invocation 8:22,23

involved 27:22 40:5 41:24

51:19 86:21

involvement 29:21 30:22

85:12

Isle 4:20

issue 35:5 37:7 47:4 60:11

82:21 92:25 93:1

issues 36:11 38:11,13 39:24 78:21 81:25 86:22 94:13,24

95:5,13

item 11:10 12:8 15:13 52:18

83:22 84:3,14

items 15:8,11 83:8,10

J

Jackson 13:8,10 38:3

jail 88:19 89:3

James 15:24 18:4 52:23,25 53:16 60:25 66:10 67:1 69:1, 5,12 70:4 71:7,15 72:20 73:3, 12 74:10,16,21 75:7,15 76:21, 24 78:8,10,20 79:6,14,21 80:1 81:21 83:1

January 4:24 85:8

Jean 38:19

Jefferson 42:2,3

JEI 45:3 46:3

Jim 9:16

job 53:8 85:20

Johnson 10:13

join 25:13

joined 17:4

joining 3:9 23:17

Joseph 42:2

joy 21:20 87:19

July 53:24 56:6

jury 86:15 87:10

justice 86:21

justified 14:11

K

Karen 44:7

Katherine 17:17

Kelly 77:25

Kevin 5:7

kick 43:6

kid 48:5,10 51:24 52:11

kids 47:19,25

killed 86:16

killings 88:12

Kim 18:3 38:3 52:23 53:15

Kimberly 13:8

kind 7:14 48:6 58:18 80:24

93:24

King 27:15 51:10

knowing 25:10 88:24

knowledge 16:16

L

label 58:17

laboratories 55:14

labs 56:14

lady 89:5

Lafayette 75:8

Lamar 33:14

land 53:19 61:8 75:17,19 76:4,

5

laptops 47:17,18

larceny 40:22,24

large 9:17

laser-type 57:3

late 8:14

law 14:12 23:16 32:2 52:8 53:18 55:1,7,9,17,19,21 56:9,

18 59:8 62:1 63:19 67:21 69:14 76:2 82:6 84:20 92:24

Lawrence 18:4

laws 32:7 55:20 70:20

lawyer 75:18

lay 74:21 81:4

leader 3:23

leaders 12:22,24

leadership 7:24 29:11 30:17

51:20

League 23:12

leave 87:2

leaving 27:9

left 11:11 54:12

legally 80:7

legislature 55:6

level 51:2 93:3 94:8

Lewon 86:16

Leyn 4:20

liaison 34:18

liberty 45:13

libraries 60:22 62:15 74:13

licences 57:24

license 55:11 57:19,21

licensed 56:12 59:1,25 65:21

licensing 54:9 55:8 56:2,8

71:12

life 14:23 17:2 21:6,7 29:12

32:12

lift 49:7

lifts 45:11

light 35:21,22 36:5,22 43:2

44:12

limit 70:15 72:14

limited 71:11 76:10

limits 70:12

lingering 93:15

liquor 61:3 63:3

Lisa 9:12 16:14 85:24

list 16:8 33:15 34:13 83:10

listed 83:9

listing 13:23 74:6

live 61:10 65:13 78:17 87:10

91:9 96:1

lived 88:21,22

lives 89:11

living 91:10,13

load 64:9

lobby 6:15

local 51:20 66:24

located 18:9 26:20 62:13,17

67:25 68:8 90:6

location 8:3 49:18 65:14

locations 4:21 35:21 36:5,6,22

41:15 44:12 55:10

loitering 73:24

long 17:6 55:21 59:15 72:17 89:20 90:10

long-standing 3:21 30:18

long-time 8:19

looked 54:12 82:13 94:25

Lopez 77:3

lot 8:10 25:12 37:14 45:3 46:8 48:9 53:19 54:2,14 57:20 62:20 71:20 73:7,11,23,24 75:3 77:8 87:3

lots 60:9

loudly 66:6 68:20

Louisiana 26:18

love 39:14 45:10 47:21

M

M1 61:21 62:3,4,10

M4 62:5

M5 62:3,11

M6 61:21

Mack 4:25 8:6 44:11 49:20

made 3:15,25 67:11 86:14

magic 51:7

magical 52:5 94:8

Mahone 11:19 17:22 29:17 36:4,9 39:4,9,13 43:5 44:10 46:11,21 50:25

main 60:23 72:7 74:22 81:25

mainstay 30:21

maintain 15:18 20:3

major 8:5 41:10

majority 40:4

make 7:1,24 15:6 18:8 21:19 22:9 33:8,14,17 35:5 38:17 39:2,23 46:13 47:4 57:12 58:19,20 66:4 75:22 79:5

86:12,25

making 45:23 46:21 58:5 67:10 80:21 82:7 94:11

man 3:23,25 47:23 88:18,20

man's 88:16

manager 6:10 11:6

manual 16:20

Marathon 61:22

marijuana 18:2,6 52:21 53:21 54:8 55:2,4,8,13,23 56:10,21 57:9 58:7,11,23,25 59:15,16 60:8 63:8 64:14 67:25 68:8 71:3,12,17,18,21 78:16,25 79:3 80:11 81:7 92:25 93:13, 14.17

Market 41:18

Mason 37:22

materials 64:22

matter 31:25

matters 34:7

Matthew 5:7 6:1

Mayor 15:5,10

Mcallister 10:17,20,21

Mcdonald 86:17

Mcdonald's 44:12

meals 30:21

means 74:22

meantime 89:2

measures 90:15

media 10:7,15 31:23 34:25

medical 18:2,6 53:21 54:7 55:2,7 59:15,16 63:8 64:14 67:19 71:3,12,16 73:7 81:7

medication 58:15

medicine 73:7.13.19

meet 14:5 45:1

meeting 3:7,10,11 4:9,12,13

7:10 10:6,22 12:1 14:4 15:8 18:7 25:25 33:18 34:17 39:15, 16 53:6 63:15 83:16 85:8 86:7 87:14,17 90:11 92:16 95:13

meetings 19:7,8 32:25 50:6 86:10

meets 14:2

Meko 13:12

Melony 11:6

member 25:11,13 26:15,24

members 10:18 40:6 44:15

53:1

men 91:5,7

mention 25:8 89:14

mentioned 95:2

mentor 30:1

merged 4:25

merit 24:17

merits 28:8

met 63:14 92:7

metal 94:3

Methodist 87:19

methods 58:10

Metropolitan 4:18 11:17 22:24 96:2

Michigan 3:1 32:7 45:20 55:1, 6,7 56:13 71:16 84:5 90:22 92:4

microphone 6:8

mighty 5:17

migrate 74:1

Mile 32:18 37:12,23 38:20 76:15 77:2,8,10,24 78:7

military 3:22

Miller 17:3,8 22:20,22,25 23:2, 6,9,22 25:3,9 31:6 43:12

Miller's 24:13

million 92:6

mind 66:10 85:15

minorities 80:17

minute 36:1

minutes 12:10 18:14 53:12

mirrors 71:16

misconduct 14:19

mixed 62:5

MMFRC 64:14

model 3:23 42:1

modify 15:6

mold 58:12

mom 26:2 29:24

moment 31:19,20 87:11

Monday 38:23 54:1 63:17

money 20:25 21:16 48:9 59:3, 9 67:9,14,23 80:24,25 81:1

monitor 15:4

month 14:5 72:14 91:14

monthly 71:10,11,14

monumental 93:24

morning 25:4 48:16

Morren 5:7,24 6:1

Moses 8:13

mother 28:25 29:18 38:18

88:21

motion 11:25 12:8,18 24:20

25:2 30:16 84:21 96:4,10

motor 41:4,6 42:18

motorcycle 25:12

motorists 37:20

move 8:17 13:16 30:8 31:1 33:10 52:21 56:16 66:9 85:10

86:11 87:13,21

moved 12:2,5,11,14 24:21,24

30:12 96:5,8

Movie 43:4

moving 31:8,21 32:20 41:22

88:1

MSP 41:11

mugshot 39:18

multi-departmental 63:12

multi-family 61:15

multiple 57:24 59:17

Mumford 26:8

municipality 67:25

museums 94:4

Mutual 14:21

Ν

NACO 3:16

NACOLE 85:16

named 79:10

names 89:10

Napoleon 23:18

Narcotics 23:13

nation 4:2

national 5:5 19:6 84:19 85:9

negativity 52:8

neighborhood 11:17 20:19

42:22 64:19 65:17

neighborhoods 37:8

neighboring 23:25

network 19:7 20:19

Nevada 50:20

news 35:11 52:8

night 7:2 43:4 47:5

nights 42:23

non-criminal 15:3

noon 44:8

normal 76:6

notation 39:2

note 10:3 38:17 48:4 83:12

84:4 95:14 96:3

notes 34:17

notice 65:15

Notices 65:12

notifications 41:23

notorious 23:8

November 44:3 82:22,24

87:18 95:16

NPO 41:20 43:3,8,9,10,11

51:10

number 33:9 46:25 58:3 61:13

68:1 70:12 80:16 91:1

numbers 95:1

nutshell 65:22

0

obedient 89:23

objection 84:6

objectively 94:12

obligations 92:25

occurring 36:16

OCI 11:9

October 3:2,15 17:8 22:23

38:23 43:15,24 44:7,11 83:15

84:17 86:18 87:15

off-duty 31:24

offenders 40:5

offensive 78:22

offer 7:2 13:20 30:23 68:24

office 7:11 10:19 17:5 23:19

63:21 83:11 94:1

officer 17:3 22:25 23:2,6,9 46:17 49:9 65:10 76:5 86:15,

19 89:8

officer-involved 31:24

officers 13:20,23 14:1 17:2 25:12 33:15 42:22 47:19 48:17 49:5 83:14 89:2 95:5

offices 7:8 30:1 87:1

officials 12:20,21 94:14

oils 57:14

Om 3:20

on-duty 86:19

ongoing 82:21 95:14

open 6:19 7:12 43:25 75:20 91:15

opened 4:15 6:5

opening 31:5 50:13,16

operate 7:4

operated 26:19

operating 54:14,18

operation 15:4,12 16:10 57:4

operations 11:16 14:18 54:24 64:18

operators 57:22

opportunity 6:24 8:1,15 18:17 39:17 46:13 66:4 82:23 84:18 85:23 95:9,15

opposed 12:7,17 30:15

opt 55:24

options 43:2

oral 18:8 87:21

order 15:7 66:3 79:17

orderly 76:6

ordinance 53:24 54:9 56:2,4 58:2 60:1 70:12,18 77:3,5 81:24

ordinances 53:21 73:14

organization 69:4,8,11,14

organizations 14:15 25:15

organize 83:16

organized 27:6

Orlando 31:10

ounces 71:13 72:5,14

outcome 87:8

Outer 37:24

outlet 35:11

outlining 15:7

Outreach 10:15

outstanding 3:25 25:21 29:11, 20 49:4,21,23 85:20 86:2,5,8

overburden 16:9

overlay 74:22

oversee 11:16

oversight 14:9,12,15 15:1,19

84:19

overwhelming 43:21

owned 26:19

owner 26:17 57:4 80:5

owners 5:4 65:13 76:13

ownership 80:18 82:16

Ρ

p.m. 96:12

package 65:8

pain 59:18

paper 88:17

parade 27:13

Park 44:7

parking 73:24

parks 62:14 74:13

part 6:21 15:17 26:17 39:3 45:3 63:11 70:4 73:4

part-time 62:22

participate 83:17 95:21

participated 27:4,16 72:1

participating 34:1

partner 39:19 43:2

partnerships 41:9

party 30:3

pass 55:20 56:4

passed 17:8 38:19 53:23 54:8 55:1,7 56:3,7,10 60:2 96:10

passes 69:24 70:6

past 16:2 17:13 26:17 39:25 40:7,12,18,22 53:22 85:24

path 91:10

patient 73:17 87:25

patients 55:4 59:13,16 71:17

73:7

patrol 42:5

patrols 41:15,17

patterns 14:18

pay 91:14

Peacekeepers 25:11

people 3:9 7:11 21:11 38:4 45:5,19,20 50:8 59:16 60:9,10 61:9 63:22 72:11 73:10,16,23 78:24 79:2 80:22 82:12 90:19, 20,23 91:9,14,16,21 93:10

percent 32:21 33:3,5,6,12 41:2 42:12,16,19 57:1 67:16, 24 68:6,7,12 90:24 91:1,5,7, 12,13

perform 42:24

period 40:2,9,14,16,24 41:7

permanent 72:19,20

permit 53:10

person 8:4 18:24 48:7,8 58:13 82:15 93:13

personal 4:11 8:12 48:4

personally 30:16 37:25 47:11

personnel 11:14,21

persons 25:19 27:12

pesticides 58:12

Petersburg 84:20

Petroleum 61:22

pharmaceutical 70:1

pharmaceuticals 70:7

Philanthropy 92:5

phone 47:4

physical 76:9

physically 81:21

pick 53:8

picture 54:5

pictures 8:10 54:5

pivot 81:25

place 38:21 42:6 50:11 73:20

74:2,3 77:6 82:22

places 5:6 37:15 45:5

plan 64:16,17,19 74:2 82:9

planning 44:2 63:19

plans 41:14

plant 56:24 57:6,8

plants 56:22 57:5,20,25 58:4

82:4

pleased 38:10

pleasure 21:21

PM 3:3 14:6 43:17,18 44:1

87:15,18

point 10:5 22:15 53:13 54:21

60:12 66:2 70:20 73:12 89:18

pointing 68:18

police 3:5,12 4:10,15,18,23 7:16 9:21 11:17 14:2,8,10,19, 20,21,22,25 15:2,6,11 16:20 17:2,3,10,23 19:21,25 20:15 22:23,24 23:12,15,23 24:3,9, 11 25:12 27:17,21,24 28:1,3,9

29:1 31:6,16 32:16 35:1,20 36:11 38:18,25 42:22 44:21

10/11/2018

46:5,7,24 49:13 64:21 71:19 80:20 81:9,18 83:13 86:15 89:16.21.25 90:14 94:6 95:22

policemen 88:14,15

policies 32:5

policing 50:25

policy 11:7 15:6 32:2 53:19

political 95:21

Polly 10:17,21

pool 63:3

poorest 19:14

pop 62:20

pose 66:4

position 11:4 15:19 23:20

27:1

positive 32:10

possess 71:18

possibilities 81:11

possibility 81:6

posted 16:20

posthumously 22:21 24:12

pot 55:17

potency 58:16

potential 76:8

potholes 81:2

Powerpoint 66:12

practical 93:7

practices 14:20

pray 4:8 25:5

prayers 3:18 4:4 25:3 31:17

39:1

precinct 4:17 5:1,2 7:24 8:7,8, 9,19 13:9 17:11,21,24,25 23:1,3 25:24 26:15,21 28:6,14 29:6 30:1,18 36:3 38:15 39:5, 6,14,20 41:3,8,12 43:16,24

44:21 45:18 47:20 49:11,15,

16,22 50:13,14,15,16,21,22 51:2,5,6,7 52:19 87:18 94:7, 17

precincts 4:25 14:6 51:5

preempt 55:21

preempted 82:6

preliminary 32:8 35:6

present 10:4 26:1 29:16 39:5

45:21 92:15,17

presentation 17:20 18:1,2

49:1

presentations 17:20

presented 29:7

presents 44:21 59:11

president 12:25 17:13 26:16

38:2

press 85:2

pretty 6:1 68:8

preventative 90:15 91:20

previous 40:2,9,14,19,24

60:14 67:6 77:2,5

price 22:2

primarily 41:2

Prime 26:20

print 18:8

prints 41:16

prior 75:16

prioritized 36:19

Priority 35:25 36:6,10,12,22,

23

private 5:4 92:4

privatize 21:25

privileged 20:16

problem 21:1 64:11

problems 37:15 94:24

proceedings 96:11

process 18:15 33:24 57:10 62:25 63:6,16 73:14 82:14 95:22

processed 41:16 processing 57:12

Processor 62:2

processors 55:12 56:14 58:5 74:9,15

product 57:15 58:6

products 57:13 59:24

professional 24:7 94:9

professionalism 24:1,15

program 15:10,11 16:2,3,6,11 27:7 55:25 60:14 64:1 90:18 91:8,18

programs 43:3 82:11

progress 16:5

promoted 23:9,20

properly 12:4,13 24:23 30:11 96:7

property 65:12 76:7,12,13 89:1

proportion 68:1,11

proposed 16:19 65:14

protect 14:14 74:3

protection 13:21

proud 54:22 86:5

provide 14:9 15:1,16 34:20 65:1,3

provided 18:3 20:20 83:19,20

providing 10:7 20:5

proving 64:8

provision 15:22 68:23

provisioning 55:15,17 59:12 61:4 62:3 63:5 67:15 70:12,14 71:6 74:7 76:16 77:19

public 14:3 16:18 18:13 22:3 24:1,14 26:23 53:2 60:5,7,22

10/11/2018

62:16 63:24 64:2,21 65:11 74:4 75:25 87:16 94:14

purchase 59:24

purchased 5:7 6:6

purchasing 71:12,24

purpose 63:23

purposes 67:8 93:8

put 6:18 27:18 35:12 37:17
45:9 53:20 67:22 74:3 75:22
81:14

puts 27:17 91:10

putting 63:12

Q

quality 14:23 29:12

quarter 33:10

question 35:18 36:4,7 55:24 66:16 69:5,21 70:5 71:1 72:24 75:4 76:15,25 79:23,24 81:20

questioning 35:16

questions 33:20 37:3 49:1,3 53:12,13 65:24 66:4,5,8,14, 19,21 68:19 84:9,12

quick 86:25

Quinn 10:6

quorum 10:3

R

R1 61:12,14

R2 61:12

R3 61:12

R4 61:12

R5 61:12

R6 61:15

raise 94:12 95:13

raised 9:14 72:24

raises 92:6

raising 67:2

rampage 88:11

rank 23:10

rapid 20:20

rate 67:16

re-scheduled 17:19

reach 8:11 39:1,2

reached 70:15

read 15:17 29:6 48:13 88:16

reading 57:1

reads 45:10

ready 34:21

real 49:13

reason 67:5 73:4 88:19

reasons 67:5 76:25

reassigned 23:11

recall 54:6

receive 15:3 83:12 84:4

received 26:13

receivers 13:22

recent 31:23 43:13

recently 33:8 48:4 53:23

recognition 18:24 19:22 20:1 24:12 29:10,19,23

recognize 38:1 49:5

recognized 70:22 93:2

recognizing 92:23

recommend 65:5

recommendation 59:22 65:9

recommended 15:10 16:22

record 10:3 64:3,10 67:12

81:4,15

recorded 67:12

recreational 67:19 69:24 70:2,

6,15 81:7

Recruit 32:16

red 28:22,23 72:12

reduce 54:23

reduction 33:12 42:12,16,19

50:22

reductions 42:8

referendum 69:24

reflect 31:4 87:10

reflects 40:9 42:13,16,20

refounders 6:3

refreshments 95:9

refurbishes 47:15,18

regard 24:17

register 59:23

registered 71:17

Registry 5:6

regulate 56:4 93:19

regulating 54:7,11,17 67:7

regulatory 56:17

rejected 21:14

related 13:25

relates 32:6 42:11 72:17 93:6

relations 17:13 25:25 26:16

27:21 28:14 38:3 50:5

relationship 46:6

relative 93:12

release 85:2

relief 20:20

religious 62:18

remained 3:18

remarks 13:24 31:5,22 52:18

remember 50:3 55:22 67:7

69:8 75:16

Remembering 31:15

remembers 55:23

remind 4:21 16:13,18

rendered 85:6

Rene 38:18

renovation 5:9

rep 25:20 63:18

repeat 66:8

report 13:17,22,24 16:4 17:25

18:6 33:19 34:8 35:9 38:15

84:9

reported 34:25 35:7

reporter 10:8

reporting 31:2 37:4 38:8 39:20

52:23 86:9

reports 16:8 34:7 83:4

represent 3:5 90:5

representative 92:24

representatives 12:21

representing 11:23 17:23 18:4

requested 16:15

requesting 16:3

requests 83:13

require 69:15

required 58:6,21,22 60:4 87:2

requirements 71:10 82:8

requires 56:11 67:21

reside 37:6

resident 26:7 47:2 53:4 88:21

residential 61:10 73:1,4

residents 14:24

resolution 17:1,9 18:19 22:15, 20 24:11 25:22 26:1,2,4 30:8

resolutions 16:25

RESOLVED 24:8 27:25

resource 21:23,24

resources 45:6,7

respect 14:21 18:16

respected 24:6

respectful 18:15

respond 36:16 38:10 81:19

responding 42:25

response 15:15 35:1,20 36:5

37:13 41:11 43:22 46:3

responses 35:24

rest 68:13

restaurant 44:13

restoration 20:22

restriction 73:3 74:10 75:5

restrictions 60:14,19 62:12

73:23 74:6,8 76:19 77:1,14

resulted 42:7

results 5:11

retail 55:10 69:25 71:5

retain 22:10

retired 26:22 27:12 31:16

38:24

retirement 23:14

retiring 23:15

return 5:10

revered 29:1

review 16:21 32:4 63:13

64:15,16 65:3 75:10 82:14

reviewed 32:3 65:8

reviewing 14:17

Reynolds 70:22

RFID 56:25 57:8

RFIS 57:15

rice 28:22,24

Richardson 17:18

rid 58:25



right-hand 54:19

rights 14:15 45:13

rise 94:8

risk 59:11

river 42:4 49:21

Riverfront 27:3

Rivertown 26:25

RJ 70:22

Road 38:20 87:20

robberies 33:3 40:6,8,10

42:11

Robert 10:11 88:2 90:2 92:19

94:21

Robins 41:20

role 15:13,23

rookie 89:4,8 95:5

rookies 89:19 94:25

room 11:2 50:9 57:5

rooms 7:10

Roots 44:6

Rose 10:8

Rosedale 74:24

rotation 16:12,15 34:14

round 20:6 85:19

routes 76:11

routine 15:14,24

row 10:12,13,14 11:4

ruled 56:2

rules 72:2

run 7:8 43:23 80:15,22 81:7,12

running 18:25 47:20 56:20

S

Sacred 44:4

sad 38:17

safe 73:20,24 94:11

safety 13:20 14:4 43:4 55:14

62:7 87:16

sale 67:11

sales 67:17,18,20

salt 93:20

salute 3:20

Sam 51:10,23,25 52:1,12

sample 58:8,10

Samuel 43:9

Saturday 25:4 38:21

save 32:11

saved 48:10

schedule 19:1 29:25 38:16

66:11

scheduled 31:11 35:5 43:14

44:7 83:14

scheme 61:21

scholarships 27:15

school 26:8 27:16 37:19,23

91:12

schools 26:12,23 37:18 60:22

62:14 69:17 74:13

scientific 58:10

sclerosis 59:17

scope 49:6

SD2 62:5

Sean 43:10

seat 39:4 84:21,22,25

secondary 33:16

secretary 9:25 10:2 11:1 27:2,

10 83:5,6

section 11:7 23:13 66:22

secure 58:22 59:2 62:9

secured 55:12

security 23:19 59:11 64:18

74:1,2

seed-to-sale 56:23

seek 84:21

sell 22:1 58:25 70:2,8 71:5

selling 70:23 72:6

send 58:8

senior 27:7 43:4

seniors 27:8 43:3

sense 79:5

sensitive 81:10

separate 74:17

separation 49:10

September 12:9 55:9 84:17

85:11

sergeant 23:10 31:16

serve 3:6 5:19 20:17 27:24

30:21

served 4:17 17:3,5,12 23:3,12,

22 24:7

service 4:2 17:2 23:13 24:1,14

25:6,16 29:20 36:25

services 10:7 20:4 29:21

64:22 68:24

serving 26:15 31:6

session 83:14,17

sessions 82:18

set 15:21 84:21

Sewage 21:14

Sexual 32:23

Sgt 6:13 10:6 22:20 23:22

24:12 25:9 31:5 43:8

share 15:8 21:21,23,24 84:16

85:15 86:6

sharing 92:12

sheriff 17:7 23:17 68:14

Sheriff's 17:7 22:17 23:18

24:4 31:8



Shirley 9:6

shoot 66:16

shooting 36:15,16

shop 55:17

short 39:23

shortly 5:9

shot 86:16

shoulders 46:9

show 35:2 50:7 58:2 76:5 82:9

showed 50:7

showing 32:21,23

shut 19:15

shutoffs 19:5

shy 6:8

sick 58:13

side 9:4,10,12,15 41:19 54:19 62:11 78:8 87:20 94:15

sider 9:2

sides 9:8 60:10

sign 59:22 89:23

signed 29:12 55:9

significant 4:1

silence 31:19,20

silent 51:13

similar 48:14

simply 83:7

sincere 20:2

single 42:8 56:11 57:6,8 61:14

67:11 82:15

sir 11:22 39:10 49:25 52:17

sit 89:22

site 64:16

sites 72:17

sits 37:11

sitting 11:12 94:5

situation 21:17 22:9 67:6

situations 71:23

size 56:24

skin 57:14

skinny 52:11

skipped 67:2

Slappy 38:2

sleepy 58:19

slide 53:15 54:24 56:16 57:16

59:25 61:5 64:12 65:6

slot 66:18

slowing 37:13

small 58:8

smell 93:11.14

smelled 93:12

smelling 93:15

smells 74:1

Smith 88:4,6

social 76:8

sold 57:10,16 70:21

son 53:7 66:13

sons 88:24,25

sort 6:2,23 49:7 60:11 82:2

southwest 9:12,15 74:23

sp 5:7

space 6:16 7:3,4,10,11

spacing 60:13,18 62:12 74:6,

10 77:1,13

speak 6:9 41:25 51:12,13,15

68:20 90:9

speaker 18:9,14 69:23 88:3

92:20 94:22

speaking 24:9 28:1

spearhead 85:23

special 23:3 44:15,16,19

46:14 51:6 52:4 62:5

specially 54:15

specials 28:18

specifically 68:14 69:13

speed 37:16,20

speeding 37:8

spend 48:8

spirit 28:4 29:3,7,22 44:22

45:11,17

sponsor 81:24

Squad 94:11

St 84:20

stack 57:22

staff 10:5 11:3,9 15:15 23:4

80:4 84:25 85:5 87:2,7

stage 64:2

stages 58:7

stand 12:23 19:18 38:4 46:19

68:20 94:15

standard 3:24 24:16

standing 32:12 39:12 46:8

48:22 83:3

Stanton 10:24

start 29:3 31:22 32:20 53:5

54:1,7,16,23 63:17 82:3

started 8:6 20:18,19 33:23

39:7,18 54:11,25 80:16

starting 9:1 11:19 44:4

starts 32:18 70:23

state 26:10 32:7 37:12 45:4,20

55:1,17,21 56:12 57:18 59:15,

23 62:1 65:21 67:12,13,23

68:3 71:25 72:2,3 73:5 80:2,

23 81:2 82:6 90:22 92:4,7

State's 55:25 72:7

stated 49:17

statement 15:17

states 55:11 59:8



station 4:10,15,19,23 5:3,10, 25 6:2,21 7:16,20 95:11

statistics 91:11

status 63:1 83:13

stay 7:20 38:12 53:6 87:25

stays 57:9

steady 40:7

stealings 88:13

step 25:21

steps 34:2

Stevan 17:2,8 22:20,22 24:12 31:5

01.0

stewardship 6:6

stipend 91:14

Stokes 12:25 13:3

stop 28:17 72:11 80:8 91:17

stopped 48:18 71:19

store 61:3

stores 63:3

story 21:21 31:23 35:4

Straight 51:17,22

stranger 19:12

strategies 41:8 42:6

street 4:10,15 5:10,25 6:2,21 7:20 37:11,21 72:6 74:22 87:16 88:22 95:10

streets 74:25 75:1

stress 21:9

Stribly 43:11

strong 6:21 19:5 58:18

structure 82:16

struggled 73:5

stuff 28:19

submitted 16:23

subpoena 83:24

10/11/2018

substantial 68:5,11 83:12

suburbs 78:6

success 21:22

successful 45:23

summary 83:19

Sunday 28:18

Sundays 28:17

super 48:11

supervised 14:10

Supervising 10:23,25 53:17

supervisor 26:24

support 12:3,12 13:19 24:22 30:10 45:15 73:16 85:5 96:6

supported 12:5,14 24:24 30:12

supporting 28:6 83:18

supposed 58:17 72:13 73:6, 13 74:1

surprise 46:2

surprising 71:21

surrounding 19:7 65:12 76:7

Surveillance 23:5,11

survey 78:2

suspect 70:16

Swanson 38:19

system 55:3 56:15,23 59:6 67:11 72:9 86:21,22 90:20,21, 23,25

Т

table 18:10

tables 93:20

tactical 11:18 41:11

tag 56:25 57:9,15

tagging 57:6

takes 29:25 47:8,17 67:14

taking 32:6 38:21 47:21 48:19 95:2

talk 51:12,17,18,22 53:11

talked 62:12

65:23 66:6 71:9

talking 45:6 53:9 73:1 80:23, 25 81:2 93:16,17

taping 10:6

target 85:15

Task 23:7

Tate 81:23

tax 62:19,21 64:5 66:23 67:8,

15,17,18,20

tax-exempt 62:25

taxes 63:22 64:20 67:21

teaching 82:11

team 6:12 7:24 43:7 53:20

84:24

teamwork 54:14

technically 56:25

technology 7:7

teenager 8:4

Telegraph 77:24

telling 45:1 58:1

temporarily 23:7

tended 77:9

term 72:17,18 85:1

terms 4:2 30:17 66:13 74:21 80:20 85:5,12,16 86:4,22

87:11 88:1

test 58:7,10,16

tested 58:21

tester 58:9

thankful 90:12

theft 41:4,6 42:18

Theresa 6:12

thing 6:12,23 25:9 34:12 38:11 48:3 79:18 80:2,22 82:2 95:1

things 48:17 51:8,14 57:14 58:12,21 59:20 61:16 64:15 65:2 68:22 73:25 74:3 82:8 91:4 95:20

thinking 27:21

third-party 56:14

thought 7:14

thousands 57:25

threat 94:1

three-year 85:1

threshold 73:2

thresholds 75:13

threw 43:21

Thursday 3:2 14:4 87:15,18

time 3:17 4:7 5:15,23 8:24 13:16 17:25 18:5 25:23 26:20 27:23 29:24 33:1,7 35:1,20 36:1,24 39:6,10 43:8 44:14 45:8 52:15 56:7 59:15 61:8 64:7 66:6,11,15,18 75:4 83:4, 16 86:18 87:25 88:9 89:24 90:8 91:22

times 48:15 64:1

Tips 43:4

tirelessly 23:22 46:5

title 53:16

TMSO 74:19

today 3:7 16:4,25 19:8 20:11 21:2 34:6 44:16 63:14 90:11

today's 34:10

Todd 85:25

told 10:15 21:15 47:10 88:20

Tomorrow 32:15

tonight 4:9 10:6,8 17:19 39:20

53:3

tonight's 4:12 10:22

Tonya 43:11

tool 56:17,19

topic 38:12 77:23

total 33:4 50:22

totally 21:4

touched 31:9

tow 34:14

towers 33:25 34:1,9 84:5

towing 15:10,22 16:1,2,5,11,

15 33:23,24 84:7

track 57:3

tracked 56:22

tracking 56:11,15 67:10 72:8

traditional 74:22

traffic 41:10,19

training 82:11

transaction 71:9

transition 3:15

transmitted 16:7

transport 58:23 59:2,3 62:9

transporter 58:22 59:2

transporters 55:12 74:9

travel 26:13,20 27:8 50:20

Treasurer 67:23

Treasury 63:22

tremendous 37:13

tremendously 52:7

triage 36:13

triages 36:24

trips 27:7

triumph 21:22 38:23

truck 31:1 76:11

truckers 55:13 56:13

true 63:1 81:23

trust 14:21 62:22

Tuesdays 27:8

Turkey 44:2

turn 21:20 52:8 91:11

turning 72:5

Turpin 8:8,9

TV 88:17

tweaks 70:18

twirls 52:1

type 7:17,25 21:16 30:23 34:6 45:17 55:20 79:18 82:2 85:16

types 57:18 59:18 60:3 61:24 64:22 69:6 70:19 73:25 74:2 82:7

typically 11:3

U

uncles 48:20

understand 36:20

understanding 80:13 81:11

unique 51:5

unit 23:3,5,11 25:12

United 87:19

units 11:18 41:11

University 45:4

UNKNOWN 69:23

unlimited 58:3

unnecessary 14:20 88:11

unsung 46:16 48:14,23

untimely 31:9,12 33:16

upcoming 43:13

update 18:1 52:21

updates 82:24

upsetting 88:24

Ursula 43:11

utilization 16:11 utilize 83:24

V

valid 56:3

Van 4:19

variance 77:16

variances 60:13,15,17 77:13

variety 5:4

vehicle 41:4,6 42:18

vendors 56:19

verdict 86:17 87:9

Vernor 74:23

version 77:2,5 93:12

versus 35:20 40:3,14,25 41:7

42:9,13,17,20

veteran 46:23

Vice-chair 22:16

video 86:6

viewing 3:11 38:20

village 41:17

violation 76:12

Violators 41:10

Violent 23:7

visit 41:23

visitors 14:24

voice 94:12

volunteering 85:13

volunteers 27:3,12,14

vote 95:15,19

voters 56:3

voting 82:21

W

waiting 16:16

waive 77:13

waivers 77:1

Walk 42:4

walked 6:14

wanted 85:2 86:22 90:11 94:9

war 50:22

warehouse 57:23

Warick 10:16

waste 64:18

water 19:5,15 20:3,18,20,21, 24 21:3,4,5,6,9,12,14,20 22:1, 5,7,10

Wayne 17:4,6 22:17 23:18,24 24:3 26:10 31:8 45:4 68:9

ways 56:16

website 16:21

week 14:3 42:23 63:16 88:15

94:2

weekly 13:22 41:14

weeks 15:9 16:14

well-being 76:9

west 9:1,4,10 32:18 87:20

white 11:6 15:24 89:2

White's 86:4

wife 6:8 31:15

Wilcox 88:5 90:3 92:19,21,22

William 3:14,21 9:4

Williams 13:12 17:17 19:2,3, 11,19,23 20:1,6,13 22:14 35:7

46:18

Willie 3:5 5:12 9:19 17:17

84:23

woman's 32:11

Woodward 90:6

word 87:4

words 20:12 48:14 78:22 79:7

work 3:21 5:11 7:12 10:7 15:1, 5 17:21 19:9 20:10 23:16 25:13,16 28:13 36:17,20 42:23 45:23 47:1 49:23 50:3, 25 53:9,14,18 63:11 65:24 80:21 86:4 93:10

worked 25:10 53:20 56:15 86:21

working 20:11 23:5,8 46:5 72:1 75:8 85:14

works 45:4

workshop 85:24 86:5,7

workshops 86:1

world 27:9

worthy 29:23

wow 7:10

wrap-arounds 42:24

wrong 89:19

wrote 88:9

www.detroit.gov/bopc. 16:24

Υ

y'all 26:19 51:19

year 4:14 6:7 32:22 33:2,7 41:1 43:20,23 46:13 53:24 55:23 59:19 84:21 90:21 91:2 92:6

year's 40:16

year-to-date 40:15 42:12,16,

years 4:18 7:6 8:3,21 17:4,5, 14 23:24,25 25:7 26:8,17,18 27:5,17 28:5,15 30:19,22 31:7 50:16,19 53:7,22 80:17 89:9

young 3:25 8:3 30:1 32:11 52:2,9 88:16,18 90:19,20,22 91:5,7,9,16,21 93:9

youngest 9:20

youth 62:15 69:17



Ζ

zone 60:21 61:1 74:12

zones 60:20 62:13

zoning 54:9 56:4 60:1,2,9,15 61:6,7 70:11 75:18 76:3 77:12